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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First Security Islami Bank Ltd. (the
“Group”) as well as the separate financial statements of First Security Islami Bank Ltd. (the
“Bank”) , which comprise the consolidated and separate Balance Sheets as at December 31,
2022, consolidated and separate profit or loss accounts, consolidated and separate statement of
changes in equity, consolidated and separate cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and separate
financial statements of the Bank (the “financial statements”) give a true and fair view of the
consolidated Balance Sheets of the Group and the separate Balance Sheets of the Bank as at
December 31, 2022 and its consolidated and separate profit and loss accounts, consolidated and
separate statement of changes in equity and its consolidated and separate statement of cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
explained in note 2 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group and the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), Bangladesh Securities Exchange and
Commission (BSEC) and Bangladesh Bank, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh
(ICAB) By Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained are sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis of our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter described below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters.

Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the consolidated and separate financial
statements. These results of our audit procedures, including the procedures per‘formed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompa consohdated and
separate flnanc:lal stat,ements
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Description of key audit matters

Our response to key audit matters

1. Investments

Refer to note no. 08 to the consolidated and separate financial statements

Investments are the main element of financial
statements of the Bank. Income of the Bank is
mainly dependent on the portfolio of
investments. Management performance is
highly dependent on the target achievement of
investments. Investment disbursement
requires robust documentation followed by
approval from appropriate level of authority.

We have identified investments as key audit
matter because there is an inherent risk of
fraud in disbursement of investments by
management to meet specific targets or
expectations.

We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls focusing on
Investments appraisal, investment
disbursement procedures and monitoring
process of investments.

We have performed procedure to check |

whether the Bank has ensured appropriate
documentation as per Bangladesh Bank
regulations and the Bank's policy before
disbursement of investments. In addition, we
have performed procedure to check whether
the investments are recorded completely and

accurately and that are existed at the reporting |

date.
At year end the Group and the Bank reported
total gross investments of BDT 52,394.44 core | Furthermore, we have assessed the
(2021: BDT 45,585.01 core) and BDT | appropriateness of disclosure  against
52,479.51 core (2021: BDT 45642.85 core) | Bangladesh Bank guidelines.
respectively.
2. Recognition of Investment income
Refer to note no. 26 to the financial statements -
Recognition of investment income has signi- | We tested the design and operating '

ficant influence on financial statements and
performance of the Bank.

We identify recognition of investment income
as a key audit matter because this is one of
the key performance indicators of the Bank
and therefore there is an inherent risk of fraud
and error in recognition of investment income
by management to meet specific targets or
expectations.

Bangladesh Bank through BRPD circular no.
51 dated 18 December 2022, allowed banks to
recognize accrued investment income on
investments upon realizing 50% of dues
amount from October'22 to December'22.

P
Al :

effectiveness of key controls over recognition
and measurement of investment income.

We performed test of control in place to
measure and recognize investment income.

substantive
investment
and

We have
procedure
income is
accurately.

also performed
to check whether
recognized completely

We assessed the appropriateness and
presentation of disclosure against relevant
accounting standards and Bangladesh Bank
guidelines.
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For the year ended the Group and the Bank |
reported total gross income from investments
of BDT 4,040.45 core (2021: BDT 4,077.37
core) and BDT 4,023.59 core (2021: BDT
4,063.19 core) respectively.

Considering the current
economic activity for ongoing Russia and
Ukraine war along with COVID impact, the
recognition of investment income following
BRPD circular no. 51 dated 18 December
2022, there is an inherent risk that the actual
recovery of accrued investment income from
clients who enjoyed deferral benefit could be
materially different in future.

3. Measurement of provision for investment

uncertainty  in

Refer to note no. 08 and16(a) to the consolidated and separate financial statements

The process for estimating provision for
investments associated with investment risk is
judgmental, significant and complex.

For the individual analysis, these provisions
consider the estimates of future business
performance and the market value of collateral
provided for Investment transactions.

For the collective analysis, these provisions
are manually processed that deals with
voluminous data extracted from the IT system
of the Bank and following the instructions of
Bangladesh Bank issued time to time.

While estimating such provision certain
judgmental factors need to be considered
including:

» Future business performance of the
investment client;

» Key assumptions relating to further
business performance of the client;

» Market value of the collateral;
» Ability to repossess collateral; and
» Recovery rates.

Due to high level of judgment involved and
using some manual process in estimating the
provision for investments, we considered this
to be a key audit matter.

At year end the Group and the Bank reported
total provision for investments of BDT 1,522.84
core (2021: BDT 1,368.60 core) and BDT
1,522.84 core (2021: BDT 1,368.60 core)
respectively.

We tested the design and operating

effectiveness of key controls focusing on the

following: ’
» Tested the , investment appraisal,

investments disbursement procedures,
monitoring and provisioning process;

» Reviewed identification of loss events,
including early warning and default
warning indicators; and

» Reviewed quarterly Classification of |

Investments (CL);

Our substantive procedure in relation to the
provisions for investments portfolio comprised
the following:

» Reviewed the adequacy of the Group
and the Bank's general and specific
provisions;

» Assessed the methodologies on which
the  provision amounts  based,
recalculated the provisions and tested
the completeness and accuracy of the
underlying information; and

» Finally, assessed the appropriateness |

and presentation of disclosures against
relevant accounting standards and
Bangladesh Bank guidelines.
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4. 1T systems and controls

Our audit procedures have focused on IT
systems and controls due to the pervasive
nature and complexity of the IT environment,
the large volume of transactions processed in
numerous locations daily and the reliance on
automated and IT dependent manual controls.

Our areas of audit focus included user access
management, developer access to the
production environment and changes to the IT
environment. These are keys to ensuring IT
dependent and application-based controls are
operating effectively.

We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Group and the Bank's IT
access controls over the information systems
that are critical to financial reporting. We
tested IT general controls (logical access,
changes management and aspects of IT
operational controls). This included testing that
requests for access to systems were
appropriately reviewed and authorized.

We tested the Group and the Bank's periodic
review of access rights. We also inspected
requests of changes to systems for
appropriate approval and authorization. We
considered the control environment relating to
various interfaces, configuration and other
application layer controls identified as key to
our audit.

Where deficiencies were identified, we tested
compensating controls or performed alternate
procedures. In addition, we understood where
relevant, changes were made to the IT
landscape during the audit period and tested
those changes that had a significant impact on
financial reporting.

5. Legal, regulatory matters and Contingent Liabilities

We focused on this area because the Bank and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) operates in a
legal and regulatory environment that is
exposed to significant litigation and similar
risks arising from disputes and regulatory
proceedings. Such matters are subject to many
uncertainties and the outcome may be difficult
to predict.

These uncertainties inherently affect the
amount and timing of potential out flows with
respect to the provisions which have been
established and other contingent liabilities.

Overall, the legal provision represents the
Group’'s best estimate for existing legal
matters that have a probable and estimable
impact on the Group'’s financial position.

The Bank has disclosed contingent liabilities
amounting to BDT 42,861,994 461 at the year
ended on December 31, 2022 (2021 BDT
44,525,606,270).

As per IAS 37 Contingent liabilities are not
required to be recognized but disclosed in the
financial statements=——-_

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the
design and tested the  operational |
effectiveness of the Group’s and the Bank's |
key controls over the legal compliances.

We enquired to those charged with
governance to obtain their view on the status
of all significant litigation and regulatory
matters.

We enquired of the Group’s and the Bank's
internal legal counsel for all significant
litigation and regulatory matters and inspected |
internal notes and reports. We also received
formal confirmations from external counsel.

We assessed the methodologies on which the
provision amounts are based, recalculated the
provisions, and tested the completeness and
accuracy of the underlying information.

We also assessed the Group's and the Bank's
provisions and contingent liabilities disclosure
in the financial statements as per provisions of
IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets.

S, AT Sg
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Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information in the Annual Report other than the consolidated and separate financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements and Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and also separate financial statements of the Bank in accordance with
IFRSs as explained in note 2 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Banking Companies Act, 1991(as amended up to date) and the Bangladesh Bank Rules and
Regulations require the Management to ensure effective internal audit, internal control and risk
management functions of the Bank.

The Management is also required to make a self-assessment on the effectiveness of anti-fraud
internal controls and report to Bangladesh Bank on instances of fraud and forgeries.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group’s and the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern considering the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic situation, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Group and the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s and the Bank's
financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated and separate Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentatigg,s_@r the override of internal control.

[ .
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* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting considering the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic situation and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and the bank to express an opinion on the consolidated and
separate financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group’s and the Bank's audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Banking
Companies Act, 1991, the rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank, we also report that:

(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

(i) to the extent noted during the course of our audit work performed on the basis stated under the
Auditor's Responsibility section in forming the above opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the separate financial statements of the Bank and considering the
reports of the Management to Bangladesh Bank on anti- fraud internal controls and instances of
fraud and forgeries as stated under the Management's;

(iii) Responsibility for the financial statements and internal control:

(@ internal audit, internal control and risk management arrangements of the Group and the
Bank as disclosed in the financial statements appeared to be materially adequate;

() nothing has come to our attention regarding material instances of forgery or irregularity or
administrative error and exception or anything detrimental committed by employees of the
Group and the Bank and its related entities {other than matters disclosed in these financial

statements};

(iv) Financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 of Subsidiaries namely First
Security Islami Capital & Investment Limited has been audited by SHAFIQ BASAK & CO.
Chartered Accountants and First Security Islamic Exchange Italy S.R.L(unaudited) have been
properly reflected in the consolidated financial statements under review;

(v) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Group and
the Bank so far as it appeared from our examination of those books;

(vi) the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated profit and loss account of the Group and the
separate balance sheet and separate profit and loss account of the Bank together with the
annexed notes dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns:

(vii) the expenditures incurred and payments made were for the purpose of the Group's and Bank's
business for the year;

(viii)the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the separate financial statements of the
Bank have been drawn up in conformity with prevailing rules, regulations and accounting
standards as well as related guidance issued by Bangladesh Bank;

(ix) adequate provisions have been made for investment and other assets as per Bangladesh Bank
DBI letter no: DBI-6/51(2)/2022-330 dated April 06, 2023 and DOS letter no. DOS(CAMS)
1157/41(dividend)/2023-1970 dated 13/04/2023 which are in our opinion, doubtful of recovery;

(x) the records and statements submitted by the branches have been properly maintained and
consolidated in the financial statements;
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(xi) the information and explanations required by us have been received and found satisfactory;

(xii) we have reviewed over 80% of the risk weighted assets of the Bank and spent over 53800

person hours; and

(xiii)the bank is required to maintain minimum capital to risk weighted assets (CRAR) 10% and
12.50% with conservation buffer, where the bank has maintained CRAR 12.09%;

Partner
Shafiq Basak & Co. L
Chartered Accountants

Place: Dhaka.
Date: 2 6 APR 7073
D
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Enrolment # 1204

Partner

Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: Dhaka.

Date: 7 6 APR 2023
DVC: 2% 0428 1204 A513 £516




FIRST SECURITY ISLAMI BANK LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

PROPERTY AND ASSETS

Cash

In hand (including foreign currencies)

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its Agent Bank(s)
(including foreign currencies)

Balance with other Banks and Financial Institutions
In Baagladesh
Ourside Bangladesh

Placement with Banks & Other Financial Institutions

Investments in Shares & Securities
Government

Oithers

Investments
General Investment etc.
Bills Purchased and Negotiated

Fixed Assets Including Premises, Furniture & Fixtures and

Intangible Assets
Other Assets

Non Banking Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabilities

Placement from Banks & Other Financial Institutions
Deposits and Other Accounts

Al-Wadia Current Deposits and Other Deposit Accounts
Bills Payable

Mudaraba Savings Deposits

Mudaraba Term Deposits

Other Mudaraba Deposits

Mudaraba Subordinated Bond
Mudaraba Perpetual Bond
Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Capital/Shareholders' equity
Paid-up Capiral

Starutory Reserve

Orther Reserve

Asset Revaluation Reserve
Retained Earnings

Total Sharcholders' Equity

Non-controlling Interest
Total Liabilities and Sharcholders' Equity

Nenks 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
BDT BDT
37,274,813,884 34,073,843,637
4.1 3,954,792,300 3.318,477,065
42 33,320,021,584 30,755,366,572
5 1,464,651,461 2,089,716,234
414,301,251 1.362,218,790
1,050,350,210 727,497,435
6 13,839,455,000 12,490,000,000
7 26,562,627,283 29,023,868,756
22.773,120,000 25.4306,220,000)
3,789,507,283 3,587,648,756
523,944,389,645 455,850,137,084
8 520,442,025,226 152,443.216,481
8.1.B 3,502,364,419 3.406,920,603
9 6,887,649,871 6,562,294,567
10 6,454,845,654 4,680,183,865
1 25,145,280 25,145,280
616,453,578,077 544,795,189,422
12 80,954,959,224 15,637,648,795
473,025,031,130 469,035,382,642
13.1 43,366,521,444 53,314,107,947
13.2 5,679,725,057 3,387,782.139
13.3 70,179,141,772 43,329,472,074
13.4 308,967,731,305 323,125,042,554
13.5 44,831,910,652 45,878,077.928
14 7,400,000,000 9,700,000,000
15 6,000,000,000 6,000,000,000
16 26,412,719,484 23,704,897,959
593,792,709,838 524,077,929,396
17.1 10,460,081.210 9.961,982.110
18 7,550,143,181 6,456,663.581
19 3,173,390,980 2,843,074,725
20 188,645,132 194,933,303
21 929,849,625 887,102,932
22,302,110,128 20,343,756,650
22 358,758,111 373,503,376
616,453,578,077 544,795,189,422




FIRST SECURITY ISLAMI BANK LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022
N 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
otes BOT BDT
OFF- BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Contingent Liabilities
Acceptances and Endorsements 18,537,397 519 17,222.082,560
Letters of Guarantee 23 6,194,871,105 6,354,664,88¢
Ierevocable Letters of Credit 24 9.677,652,974 15,002,199,003
Bills for Collecnon 25 8,452,072,863 3.946.659.812
Other Contngent Liabihues

42,861,994,461

44,525,6006,270

Total

Other Commitments

Documentary Credits And Short Term Trade Related Transactions

Forward Assets Purchased And Forward Deposits Placed - &
Undrawn Note [ssuance And Revolving Underwritng Faciliges -

Undrawn Formal Srandby Facilinies, Credir Lines And Other

Commitments = i
Total E -
Total Off -Balance Sheet Items Including Contingent Liabilities 42,861,994,461 44,525,606,270

The annexed notes (1 to 56) and Annexure A, B & C form an integral part of these financial statements.

Dhaka; April 25, 2023

Ci‘?,bﬁgmd in terms of our separate report of even dare

] Mohammad Mofizul Haque Rinku FCA
larolment No. (0239 o Enrolment No. 1204
\\ Partner Partner

Shafiq Basak & Co. Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.

(“hartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Place: 1Yhaka. Place: Dhaka,

Dare: 2 6 APR ?ﬂz‘} Daree /b APR 7073
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FIRST SECURITY ISLAMI BANK LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Operating Income:

Investments Income

Profit Paid on Deposits

Net Investment Income

Income from Investment in shares and sccunties
Commission, Bxchange and Brokerage

Other Orperating Income

Total Operating Income

Less: Operating Expenses

Salary and Allowances

Rent, "T'axes, Insurances, Electricity ere.

Legal Expenses

Postage, Stampg, Telecommunication etc.
Srarionery, Prntings, Advertisements etc.
Managing Director's Salary and Fees
Direcrors' Fees & Hxpenses

Sharizh Supervisory Committee's Fees & Hxpenses
Audit Fees

Depreciation & Repair of Bank's Asscts

Zakat Expenses

Other Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Profit /(Loss) before Provision and Tax
Provisions for lavestments including off-B/S iems
Provisions for Diminution in Value of Invesunent in Shares
Provisions for Other Assets

Provisions for Start-up Fund

Total Provisions

‘Total Profit/(Loss) before Taxes

Peowvision for Current Tax

Deferred Tax Income

Total Provisions for Tax

Net Profit/(loss) after Tax

Net profit/ (Loss) after tax atributable to:
Fquity holders of FSIBL

MNon-controlling Interest

Retained Earnings from Previous Year
Profit/(Loss) available for Appropriation
Appropriations:

Sratutory Reserve

Oiher Reserve

Dividend Paid {Previous Year)
Profit/Coupon paid to perpetual bond helder
Naon-controlling Interest

Retained Earnings Carried Porward

Earnings Per Share (EPS) previous year's figure re-stated

il \[/

Sdiang, Dirgctor

Enrolment No. 0239
Partner

Shafiq Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: Dhaka.

b2 6 APR 203

DVC:

23[!4250239‘“5%1&5&5-

\ r The annexed notes (1 1o 56) and Annexure A, B & © friem an in

022 2021
R BDT BDT
20 A0 A0 AUR,794 400,773, 780,203
27 (26,700,647,345) (27,608,053,114)
13,703,851,449 13,165,736,089
28 815,456,086 139,425,000
29 1,546,572,137 803,588,638
30 849,419,247 736,964,549
3211,447,470 1,979,976,277
16,915,298,919 15,145,712,366
3 5,316,074 850 4,507.082.664
32 §41,390,006 710,559,066
3 8,297,653 0,414,203
34 135,237,784 117,567,557
35 (634,843,035 170,089,674
36 21,331,363 19,713,122
7 1,886,000 2,141,400
38 466,000 459 (00
1,244,013 I .652__?5”
a0 §85,772,928 760,915,950
293,501 701 174,244,555
41 1,517,004.462 1,256,628, 644
9,588,039,795 7,731,068,590
7,327,259,124 7.414,643,776
16.2 1 ,579,3?8,728 1.1 46,808,638
73,201,332 [4".71 5,538)
100,000,000 376,227,389
20,299,095 33.210,421
1,782,379,155 1,512,530,910
3,544,879,969 3,002,112,866
2647, 014,248 3.300.357.472
42 (63,637,081) (53,424,593)
2,383,377,167 2,536,912,879
2,961,502,802 3,365,199,987
2043.041,910 3,344,205,832
18,560,892 20,994,155
2,961,502, 802 3,365,199,987
887,102,932 §74,820,851
3,848.605,734 1,240,029,838
1,003 479,600 1,163,092,599
303,651,817 861,340,664
1 030,863,799 48,760,200
472,200,000 358,739,288
18,560,892 20,904155
2,918,756,109 3,352,926,906
929,849,625 887,102,932
£ 281 3.20

Signed in terms of pur separate report of even date

Mohammad Mofizul Haque Rinku FCA

Enrolment Mo, 1204

Parmer

Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Place: Dhaka.
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FIRST SECURITY ISLAMI BANK LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021
Notes
BDT BDT
A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Investment Income Receipt 40,330,108,155 40,997,081,798
Profit paid on Deposits (26,504,817.467) (28,661,412,450)
Dividend Receiprs 51,131,142 11436982
Fees & Commission Receipt 1,546,572,137 803,588,638
Recoveries from investment previously written off 50,000 -
Payment to Employces (5,338,306,213) (4,527,395,786)
Payment to Suppliers (894,975,292) (372,543 440)
Income T'ax Pad (2,595,988,948) (2,304,583,961)
Receipts from Other Operating Activities 46 876,729,047 781,757,883
Payment for Other Operating Activities 47 (2,529,794,759) (2,121,602,334)
Operating Profit before changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities 4,940,707,802 4,606,327,330
Increase/(Decrease) in Operating Assets & Liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in Investments to Customers (67,467,113,407) (41,324.255,858)
(Increase)/decrease of Other Assets 48 (956,448.771) (562,213.505)
(Increase)/decrease of Placement with Banks & other Financial Insurutions (1,349,455,000) 80,300,100
Increase/(decrease) of Deposits Recewved from Customers 3,807,587 475 41,362,123 867
Increase/(decrease) of Placement from Banks & other Financial Insurunons 65,317,310,429 2,020,902,219
Increase/(decrease) of Other Liuabilities 49 104,606,011 (102,781,237)
Cash Generated from Operating Assets & Liabilities (543,513,263) 1,474,275,486
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities 4,397,194,539 6,080,602,817
. Cash Flows from Investing Activities
(Purchase)/ Sale of Shares and Secunties 2,461,241,473 (5,155,727,536)
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (979,268,916) (G22,759,0645)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 18,659,095 3,069,270
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities 1,500,631,652 (5,775,417,909)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Receipt/ (Redemption) for Issuance of Mudaraba Subordinared Bond (2,300,000,000) (900,000,001
Receipt/ (Redemption) for Issuance of Mudaraba Perpetual Bond - 2,200,000,0100)
Profit paid on Lease Luabilines (13,768 865) (16,323,381
Diwvidend/Coupon Pad m Cash (1,003,605,263) (833,119,385
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities (3,317,374,128) 450,557,231
Net Increase/ (Decrease) of Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 2,580,452,063 755,742,138
Iiffect of Exchange Rate Change on Cash & Cash Equivalents (4,546,589) (4,682,594
Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 36,163,559,871 35,412,500,327
. Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents (D+E+F) 38,739,465,345 36,163,559,871
The above closing Cash and Cash Equivalents include:
Cash 1n Hand (Including Foreign Currencies) 3,954,792,300 3,318,477 065
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its Agent Bank(s) and Other Banks 34,784,673,045 32,845,082 806
38,739,465,345 36,163,559,871
The annexed notes (1 to 56) and Annexure A, B & C form an mntegral part of these financial statements,
f
irector Diteefor Chatrman

Managi

Dhaka; April 25, 2023




FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

FIRST SECURITY ISLAMI BANK LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Particulars Paid-up Capital 51;2 ::;:2 Orther Reserve As::zel:::a]. :::;:;: Nou}-contmﬂ}n?‘ Total
BDT BDT BDT BDT BDT BDT BDT

Balance as on 01 January 2022 9,961,982,110 6,456,663,581 2,843,074,725 194,933,303 887,102,932 373,503,376 20,717,260,026
Changes in Accounting Policy - - - - - - -
Restated Balance 9,961,982,110 6,456,663,581 2,843,074,725 194,933,303 887,102,932 373,503,376 20,717,260,026
Met Profit for the Year - - - - 2.961,502,802 - 2.961,502,802
Bonus Share Issued 498,099,100 - 2 & {(498,099,100) = =
Cash Dividend - - = = (532,764.699) (33,306,157) (566,070,856)
Profit/Coupon paid to perpetual bond holder - = (472,200,000) - (472,200,000)
T'ransfer to Statory Reserve 1,093,479,600 = (1,093,479,600) = 3
Transfer to Other Reserve = 303,651,817 = (303,651,817)
Revaluaton Reserve to Other Reserve - - 10,061,074 (10,061,074) - -
Capital Increase in Subsidiary - - - - =
Non-controlling Tnterest - (18,560,892) 18,560,892 -
Deferred mx impact on Revaluation Reserve - - 3,772,903 - 3,772,903
Horeign operaton translation difference - 16,603,364 - - 16,603,364
Tod Suoyydisiolien” S Weon ) 10,460,081,210 7,550,143,181  3,173,390,980 188,645,132 929,849,625 358,758,111  22,660,868,239
December 2022
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
Balance as on 01 January 2021 9,487,602,010 5,293,570,982 1,967,545,266 321,954,358 874,829,851 352,509,221 18,298,011,687
Net Profic for the Year - - - - 3,363,199 987 - 3,365,199,987
Bonus Share Issued 474,380,100 (474,380,100
Cash Dividend 4 3 (474,380,100} (474,380,100}
Profit/ Coupon paid to perpetual bond holder - - - - (358,739,288) - (358,739,288)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 1,163,002.599 - (1,163,092,594%) - -
Transfer to Other Reserve 861,340,604 - (801,340,604) -
Revaluanon Reserve o Other Reserve 10,061,074 (10,061,074)
Capital Inerease in Subsidiary - = -
Non-controlling Interest - (20,994,155) 20,994,155 -
Deferred tax impact on Revaluation Reserve - (116,959,982) - 116,959,982y
Foregn operaton translinon difference - 4,127,721 - 4,127,721
;‘:::ﬁ;::’;é:“"""“”"" Bopitgasndl 9,961,082,110  6,456,663,581  2,843,074,725 194,933,303 887,102,932 373,503,376 20,717,260,026

The annexed notes {1 to 56) and Annexute A, B & C form an inge

saneial statements.

-
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FIRST SECURITY ISLAMI BANK LTD.

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022
Not 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
oles BDT BDT
PROPERTY AND ASSETS
Cash 37,256,204,252 34,059,157,124
In hand (including foreign currencies) 4.1(a) 3.936,182,668 3,303,790,552
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and 1ts Agent Bank(s) 4.2(a) 33,320,021,584 30,755,366,572
(including foreign currencies)
Balance with other Banks and Financial Institutions 5(a) 1,349,723,787 1,932,930,013
[n Bangladesh 324,731,568 1,287.692,771
Outside Bangladesh 1,024,992,219 645,237,242
Placement with Banks & Other Financial Institutions 6 13,839,455,000 12,490,000,000
Investments in Shares & Securities 7(a) 26,235,423,314 28,735,224,142
Government 22.773.120,000 25.436,220,000
Others 3,462,303,314 3,209,004,142
Investments 524,795,151,026 456,428,535,681
CGeneral Investment etc. 8.1.A 521,292,786,607 453,021,615,078
Bills Purchased and Negotiated 8.1.B 3,502,364,419 3,406,920,603
i Including P i i i
Fixed ).\sscts ncluding Premises, Furniture & Fixtures and o) 6,877,634,336 6,545,049,530
Intangible Assets
Other Assets 10¢a) 5,109,057,017 3,664,142,702
Non Banking Assets 11 25,145,280 25,145,280
Total Assets 615,487,794,012 543,880,184,472
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Liabilities
Placement from Banks & Other Financial Institutions 12(a) 80,484,391,794 15,226,048,795
Deposits and Other Accounts 473,046,316,737 469,061,867,848
Al-Wadia Current Deposits and Other Deposit Accounts 13.1(a) 43,387,807,051 53,340,593,153
Bills Payable 13.2 5,679,725,957 3,387.782,139
Mudaraba Savings Deposits 13.3 70,179,141,772 43,329,472,074
Mudaraba Term Deposits 13.4 308,967,731,305 323,125,042.554
Other Mudaraba Deposits 135 44,831,910,652 45,878,977,928
Mudaraba Subordinated Bond 14 7,400,000,000 9,700,000,000
Mudaraba Perpetual Bond 15 6,000,000,000 6,000,000,000
Other Liabilities 16(a) 26,116,875,125 23,415,440,729
Total Liabilities 593,047,583,656 523,403,357,372
Capital/Sharcholders' equity
Pard-up Capital 17.1 10,460,081,210 0.961,982,110
Statutory Rescrve 18 7.550,143,181 6,4536,663,541
Orther Reserve 19(a) 3,152,659,895 2 838,947 004
Assets Revaluation Reserve 20 188,645,132 194,933 303
Retained Harnings 21(a) 1,088,680,938 1,024,301,103
Total Shareholders' Equity 22,440,210,356 20,476,827,100
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 615,487,794,012 543,880,184,472

\
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FIRST SECURITY ISLAMI BANK LTD.
BALANCE SHEET

31.12.2022
BDT

31.12.2021
BDT

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022
Notes

OFF- BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Contingent Liabilities
Acceptances and Endorsements
Letters of Guarantee 23
Irrevocable |etters of Credit 24
Bills for Collecnon 25
Other Contingent Liabilities

18,537,397,519
6,194,871,105
9,677,652,974
8,452,072,863

17,222,082,366
6,354,664 889
15,002,199,003
5.946,659.512

Total

42,861,994,461

44,525,606,270

Other Commitments

Documentarv Credits And Short T'erm Trade Related Transactons
Forward Assets Purchased And Forward Deposits Placed

Undrawn Note [ssuance And Revolving Underwriting Facilives

Undrawn FFormal Standby Facilites, Credir Lines And Other Commitments

Total

Total Off -Balance Sheet Items Including Contingent Liabilities

42,861,994,461

44,525,606,270

The annexed notes (1 to 56) and Annexure A, B & € form an integral part of these financial statements,

Dhaka; Aefril 25, 2023

=

migﬂcd in rerms of our separate report of even date

Fnrolment No. 0239 *
Partner
Shafiq Basak & Co.

OIS

Mohammad Mofizul Haque Rinku FCA
Enrolment No, 1204
Partner

Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.

b2,

Chaiman =

hairman

Chartered Accountants

Place: Dhaka.
Lare: 2 EAPR 3
DVE:
2304260239AS5pg353-

15

Chartered Accountants

Place: Dhaka.

[Dare: _:? f- _,‘:-1'[: Zﬁ:’ﬁ

e 2BeYreliey As 5 90s)




FIRST SECURITY ISLAMI BANK LTD.

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
2022 2021
Notes

Operating Income: BDT BDT
Investments Income 26(a) 410,235 923 289 40,631,890,056
Profit Paid on Deposits 27 (26,700,647,545) (27,608,053,114)
Net Investment Income 13,535,275,944 13,023,836,942
Ineome from Investment in Shares and Sccuritics 28(a) 788,146,286 394,629 7506
Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 29(a) 1,524,665,635 771,842,502
Other Operating Incame 30(2) 791,749,899 678,783,672

3,104,561,820 1,845,255,930
Total Operating Income 16,639,837,764 14,869,092,872
Less: Operating Expenses
Salary and Allowances 31(a) 5,270,201 431 4,462,267,083
Rent, Taxes, Insurances, Electricity et 32(a) #37 867,800 707,114,615
Legal Expenses 33(a) 8297653 9474 203
Postage, Stamps, Telecommunication ete, 34(a) 134,505,322 116,844,275
Srationery, Printings, Advertisements ete. 35(a) (34,527,589 169,488 895
Managing Director's Salary and Fees 36() 17,505,608 16,432 430
Directors' Fees & Expenscs 37(a) 1,436,000 1,566,400
Shariah Supervisory Commtree’s Fees & Expenses 348 466,000 459,000
Audit Fees 1,035,000 1380000
Depreciation & Repair of Bank's Assets 40{a) H7H,134,842 751,863,302
Zakat Lixpenses 223,591,701 174,244 555
Other Expenses 41{x) 1,435,1%2,301 1LITR624,196
Total Operating Expenses 9,442,658,337 7,589,698,966
Profit/(Loss) before Provision and Tax 7,197,179,427 7,279,393,906
Provisions for Investments including off-B /S wrems 16.2(a} 1,542,322,027 1,118,208,638
Provisions for Diminunon in Value of [nvestment in Shares 58,160,305 (63,715,338)
Provasions for Other Assets 10,000,000 376,227 389
Provisions for Start-up Fund 29299095 33210421
Total Provisions 1,729,781,427 1,463,930,910
Total Profit/(Loss) before Taxes 5,467,398,000 5,815,462,996
Provision for Current "['ax 2.601,125,622 2547 845471
Deferred Tax (Income)/ Fxpenses 42 (63,637 ,081) (53,424,593)
Total Provisions for Tax 2,537,488,541 2,494,420,878
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax 2,929,909,459 3,321,042,118
Retained Farnings from Previous Year 1.0124,301,103 1,0135,191,735
Profit/(Loss) available for Appropriation 3,954,210,562 4,356,233,853
Appropriations:
Statutory Reserve 1,093,470 61K) 11630192 399
Other Resenve 303,651,817 201,340,064
Drividend Paid (Previous Year) 996,198,200 O48,760,200
Profit/Coupon pad o perperual bond holder 472,200,000 358,739 28k

2,865,529,624 3,331,932,751
Remained Earnings Carried Forward 1,088,680,938 1,024,301,103
Earnings Per Sharc (EPS) previous year's figure re-stated 43(a) 2.80 3.17
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FIRST SECURITY ISLAMI BANK LTD.

The abave closing Cash and Cash Equivalents include:
Cash in THand (Tncluding Foreign Currencies)

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its Agent Bank(s) and Other Banks

Director

Dhaka; April 25, 2023

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
2022 2021
S BDT BDT
A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Investment Income Receipt 40,079,131,874 40,855,182,651
Profit paid on Deposits (26,504,817,467) (28,661,412,450)
Dividend Receipts 51,131,142 11,436,982
I'ees & Commission Receipt 1,524,665,635 771,842,502
Recoveries from investment previously written off 50,000 -
Payment ro Employees (5,287,707,039) (4.478,699.522)
Payment to Suppliers (894,659,840) (371,042,664)
Income Tax Paid (2,552,056,354) (2,276,240, 816)
Reccipts from Other Operating Activitics 46(a) 791,749,899 678,783,672
Payment for Other Operating Activities 47(a) (2,465,391,122) (2,061,751,664)
Operating Profit before changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities 4,742,096,722 4,467,198,691
Increase/(Decrease) in Operating Assets & Liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in Investments to Customers {67,671,379,710) (41,375,562,252)
(Increase)/decrease of Other Assets 48(a) (496,274,701) (218,373,288;
(Increase)/decrease of Placement with Banks & other linancial Institutions (1,349.455,000) B0.500,000
Increase/ (decrease) of Deposits Received from Customers 3,802,387 876 41,374,305,614
Increase/ (decrease) of Placement from Banks & other Finanesal Institutions 65,258,342 999 2,001,177,138
Increase/ (decrease) of Other Liabilines 49(a) 77,492,676 (113,528,693)
Cash Generated from Operating Assets & Liabilities (378,885,860) 1,838,518,519
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities 4,363,210,862 6,305,717,211
. Cash Flows from Investing Activities
(Purchase)/ Sale of Shares and Securities 2,499 800,828 (5,113,671,32(H
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (979,215,323) (622,170,298
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 18,659,005 3,069,271
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities 1,539,244,600 (5,732,772,548)
. Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Receipt/ (Redemption) for Issuance of Mudaraba Subordinated Bond (2,300,000,000) (900,000,001
Receipt/ (Redemprtion) for Issuance of Mudaraba Perpetual Bond - 2,200,000,000
Profit paid on Lease Liabilities (13,768.,865) (15,874,143
Dividend/Coupon Paid in Cash (970,299,106) (833,119.388)
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities (3,284,067,971) 451,006,469
. Net Increase/(Decrease) of Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 2,618,387,491 1,023,951,132
Liffect of Exchange Rate Change on Cash & Cash Hquivalents (4,546,589) {4,682,594)
. Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 35,992,087,137 34,972,818,599
. Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents (D+E) 38,605,928,039 35,992,087,137

3,936,182,668

34,669,745,371

3,303,790,552

32,688,296,585

38,605,928,039

35,992,087,137

cial statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

FIRST SECURITY ISLAMI BANK LTD.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Particulars Paid-up Capital || Statutory Reserve || Other Reserve Ass[:::cl::::a]. g:::::e: Total
BDT BDT BDT BDT BDT BDT

Balance as on 01 January 2022 9,961,982,110 6,456,663,581 2,838,947,004 194,933,303 1,024,301,103 20,476,827,100
Changes in Accounting Policy - ; = z 2 5
Restated Balance 9,961,982,110 6,456,663,581 2,838,947,004 194,933,303 1,024,301,103 20,476,827,100
Net Profit for the Year - - - 2,929 909,459 2,929.909,459
Bonus Share [ssued 498,099,100 - (498,099,100) -
Cash Dividend - (498,099,106) (498,099,106)
Profit/Coupon paid to perpetual bond holder - (472,200,000) (472,200,000)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - 1,093,479,600 - (1,093,479,600)
Transfer to Other Reserve - - 303,651,817 - (303,651,817) -
Revaluation Reserve transfer to Other Reserve - 10,061,074 (10,061,074) - -
Deferred tax impact on Revaluaton Reserve - 3,772,903 3,772,903
Tzq;’zt;l Sharcholders’ Equity as on 31 December 10,460,081,210 7,550,143,181  3,152,659,895 188,645,132 1,088,680,938 22,440,210,356
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
Balance as on 01 January 2021 9,487,602,010 5,293,570,982 1,967,545,266 321,954,358 1,035,191,735 18,105,864,351
Net Profit for the Year - - 3,321,042,118 3,321,042,118
Bonus Share ssued 474,380,100 - - (474,380,100)
Cash Dividend * (474,380,100) (474,380,100)
Profit/Coupon paid to perpetual bond holder - (358,739,288) [358,739,288)
T'ransfer to Statutory Reserve 1,163,092,599 (1,163,092,599) -
T'ransfer o Other Reserve - 861,340,604 - (R061,340,664)
Revaluaton Reserve transfer 1o Other Reserve 10,061,074 (10,061,074) =
Deferred tax impact on Revaluaton Reserve » - (116,959,982} (116,959,982)
Total Shareholders' Equity as on 31 December 2021 9,961,982,110 6,456,663,581 2,838,947,004 194,933,303 1,024,301,103 20,476,827,100

Managing

D haka: \pnl 25, 2023

The annexed notes (1 to 56) and Annexure A, B & ( torm an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIRST SECURITY ISLAMI BANK LTD.
LIQUIDITY STATEMENT ( ASSETS AND LIABILITY MATURITY ANALYSIS)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

. Up to 01 01-03 03-12 01-05 More than Total 2022 Total 2021
Particulars Month Months Months Years 05 years
BDT BDT BDT BDT BDT BDT BDT
Assets
Cash in Hand 3.936,182,668 . = < 3,936,182,668 3,303,790,552
Salangewith Bangladcali Baak and 215 33,320,021,584 3 . 33,320,021,584 30,755,366,572
Agent Bank(s)
Balance with other Banks & Fls and 5.979.978,787 6,310,000,000 2,899,200,000 . . 15,189,178,787 14,422,930,013
Placement
Investments in Shares and Secunines 782,303,314 - 11,400,000,000 12,053,120,000 2,000,000,000 26,235,423,314 28,735,224,142
Investments 96,197,051,026 89,927,900,000 118,585,300,000  112,450,600,000  107,634,300,000 524,795,151,026 456,428,535 681
“ived Assers i e Premises
Fived Assens tiichydiog Reemises, - . 1,354,884,725 5,522,749,611 6,877,634,336 6.545,049,530
Furniture and Fixtures
Other Assets = : . 4,580,300,000 528,757,017 5,109,057,017 3,664,142.702
Non-banking Asscts . . : 25,145,280 - 25,145,280 25,145,280
Total Assets 140,215,537,379 96,237,900,000  132,884,500,000  130,464,050,005  115,685,806,628 615,487,794,012 543,880,184,472
Liabiliti
Placement from Banks & Other 54,487,491,794 7,408,500,000 10,207,000,000 7,594,800,000 786,600,000 80,484,391,794 15,226,048,795
linancial Institutions
Deposits and Other Accounts 77,117,116,737 84,963,100,000 102,372,900,000 122,875,200,000 85,718,000,000  473,046,316,737 469,061,867,848

Mudaraba Subordinated and Perpetual
Bond

Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Liquidity Gap

Managin

Dhaka; \pnl 25, 2023

: 2 2 ] I 7 4
2,300,000,000 5,100,000,000 6,000,000,000 13,400,000,000 15,700,000,000
- 1,801,075,125 6,871,100,000 10,803,500,000 6,641,200,000 26,116,875,125 23,415440,729
131,604,608,531 94,172,675,125 121,751,000,000 146,373,500,000 99,145,800,000 593,047,583,656 523,403,357,372
8,610,928,848 2,065,224,875 11,133,500,000 (15,909,449,995) 16,540,006,628 22,440,210,356 20,476,827,100

The annexed notes (1 to 56) and Annexure A, B & € form an integral part of these financial statements
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First Security Islami Bank Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

1. Corporate Information:

1.1 Status of the Bank

First Security Tslami Bank Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “the Bank or FSIBL”) was established as a Public
Limited Company in Bangladesh on 29 August 1999 under Companies Act 1994 to carry on banking business.
The Bank converted its banking operation into Islamic Banking based on Islamic Shari’ah from tradinonal
banking operation on 01 January 2009 after obtaining approval from honorable High Court, Ministry of Finance
and Bangladesh Bank. It obtained permission from Bangladesh Bank on 22 September 1999 to commence its
business. The Bank 1s one of the interest-free Shari’ah based banks in the country and its modus-operandi arc
substantially different from other conventional banks. The Bank went for public issue on 20 July 2008 and its
shares are listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) Ltd. and Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) Ltd. Presently
the Bank carries out its banking activities through its 87 Agent outlets, 157 Sub-branches and 204 branches n
the country. The Bank had no overseas branches as at December 31, 2022.

The registered office of the Bank is located at 23, Dilkusha C/ A, Dhaka-1000.

1.2 Principal Activities

1.2.1 Commercial banking services

All kinds of commercial banking services are provided by the Bank to the customers following the principles ot
Islamic Shari’ah, the provisions of the Banking Company Act 1991 and Bangladesh Bank’s directives.

The bank renders commercial banking services to all types of customers. The range of services offered by the
bank includes accepting deposit, making investment, purchasing bills, conducting domestic and international
money transfer, carrying out foreign exchange transactions in addition to international money transfers, and
offering other customer services such as safe keeping, collections and issuing guarantees, acceptances and letters
of credit. Core business of the bank includes deposit mobilization and investing activities comprising working,
capital, short-term, long-term, import and export financing. Investment activities are extended to different
sectors of the economy that could be grouped into several sectors including Rural & agriculture, Garments &
Textiles, Jute, Cement & Bricks, Tannery, Steel & Engineering, Food & Beverage, Chemical & Pharmaceuticals,
Printing & Packaging, Glass & Ceramics and Miscellaneous.

At a glance, the principal actvities of the bank are:

(a) To facilitate and handle all kinds of commercial banking services to its customers authorized by Bangladesh
Bank.

(b) To handle the export and import trade of Bangladesh

(c) To take part in international banking etc.

1.2.2 Mobile financial services-* First Cash”

FSIBL has launched mobile banking services from 2012 under the name of “First Pay Sure Cash” now “First
Cash”. I'irst Security Islami Bank offers different services through the Mobile banking services that include frec
and quick opening of customer account, deposit and withdrawal of cash money, fund transfer from one account
to another, receiving remittance from abroad, knowing account balance and mini-statement, giving and receiving
salary, mobile recharge and payment of utility bill, merchant bill payment etc.




1.2.3 FSIBL Agent Banking

First Security Islami Bank Ltd. launched its Agent Banking Operation under the brand name “FSIBI. Agent
Banking” on May 29, 2016 upon receiving permission from Bangladesh Bank on September 01, 2015. The
Agent Banking outlet is running under the ABS system integrated with CBS.

It is a banking system exactly like a model branch which is located in the remote areas, where all kinds of branch
banking facilities such as Account Opening, Cash Deposit/withdrawal, Fund Transfer, BEFIN, BACIT &
RTGS etc. in limited scale ( as per Bangladesh Bank guidelines) are provided to the underserved popularion
through engaged agents under a valid agency agreement. Along with the general banking services, FSIBL Ageni
Banking is rendering the other banking services like BREB Bill Collection and Foreign Remittance Services 1o
the underserved population of Bangladesh in the remote areas.

As per Agent Banking Model, the Agent Banking Outlets are being tagged with FSIBL Branches, considering
the distance in terms of the nearest location from the Agent Outlet. The tagging branch manager will provide all
sorts of supports to the concerned outlets as all the businesses, coming from the concerned outlets, are reflected
in their affairs i.e. tagged branch, is the ultimate beneficiary of the Agent Banking Business.

1.2.4 Off Shore Banking Unit:

Off-shore Banking Unit (OBU) is a Separate business unit of First Security Islami Bank Limited, governed under
the rules and guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. The Bank obtained the Off-shore Banking Unit permission vide
letter no. BRPD (OB)/744(126)/2020-4735 dated 06 July, 2020. The Bank commenced the operation of its Off-
shore Banking Unit from August 06, 2020. The unit is located at Rangs RD Center, Block # SE(F), Plor#03,
Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212. Due to having different functional currency the operation of OBU has been considercd
as “foreign operation” and accordingly relevant financial reporting standards have been applied consistently. The
financial statements of the OBU are included in the separate financial statements of the bank and evenrually n
the consolidated financial statements. The separate financial statements of OBU are shown in the functional
currency (i.e. USD) as well as the presentation currency i.e. BDT of the Bank in Annexure-C.

1.3 Subsidiaries:

1.3.1 First Security Islami Capital & Investment Limited

First Security Islami Capital & Investment Limited, a private company limited by shares has been formed and
registered under the Companies Act, 1994 with the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies (RJSC), Dhaka vide
certificate of incorporation no. C-88567/10 dated 02 December 2010.The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC) vide its certificate No. MB-65/2011 dated 27 March 2011 has accorded approval to the
bank for a full-fledged Merchant Banking operation under the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
Act, 1993. First Security Islami Bank Ltd. holds 51% shares and 49% shares are held by other individuals. The
company’s reporting period 1s January to December.

1.3.2 First Security Islami Exchange Italy S.R.L

First Security Islami Exchange Italy S.R.L has been formed as per approval of Bangladesh Bank vide their Letter
No. BRPD (M) 204/17/2009-95 dated 08 September 2009 for opening an owned exchange house. The main
activities of the exchange house are to catry on the remittance business and to undertake and participate in
transactions activities and operations commonly carried on or undertaken by remittance and exchange houses.

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements, namely, Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account, Cash Flow Statement, Statement of
changes in Equity, Liquidity Statement (Assets and Liability Maturity Analysis) and relevant notes to the financial
statements and disclosures thereto, of the Bank are prepared under historical cost convention on a going
concern basis.




2.1 Statements of Compliance

The bank and its subsidiaries are being operated in strict compliance with the rules of Islamic Shariah. The
Financial Reporting Act 2015 (FRA) was enacted in 2015. Under the FRA, the Financial Reporting Council
(FRC) is to be formed and it is to issue financial reporting standards for public interest entities such as banks.
The Bank Companies Act 1991 has been amended to require banks to prepare their financial statements under
such financial reporting standards. The FRC has been formed but yet to issue any financial reporting standards
as per the provisions of the FRA and hence International Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) as issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) are still applicable.

The financial statements of the Bank are made for the year ended 31 December, 2022 and are prepared under
the historical cost convention on a going concern basis and in accordance with the “ First Schedule Section
38(4) of the Bank Companies Act, 1991 and Amendment 2013, BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003, BRPD
Circular # 15 dated 09 November 2009, Circulars, Rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank ume to
time, International Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards, The Companies Act
1994, The Bangladesh Security and Exchange Rules 1987, Dhaka & Chittagong Stock Exchanges listing
regulations, Income Tax Ordinance 1984, the Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act-2012, and other
laws and rules applicable in Bangladesh. Where the reporting guidelines issued by Bangladesh Bank and Bank
Companies Act differ with those of IFRS, the requirements of the Bank company Act 1991, and provisions and
circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank shall prevail. Bank has departed from those requirements of IFRS in order
to comply with the rules and regulation of Bangladesh Bank which are disclosed below:

i) Presentation of financial statements

IFRS: As per IAS 1 financial statements shall comprise statement of financial position, statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity, cash flows statement, adequate notes comprising
summary of accounting policies and other explanatory information. As per para 60 of IAS 1, the entity shall also
present current and non-current assets and current and non-current liabilities as separate classifications m 1ts
statement of financial position.

Bangladesh Bank: The presentation of the financial statements in prescribed format (1.e. balance sheet, profir
and loss account, cash flows statement, changes in equity, liquidity statement) and certain disclosures therein arc
guided by the First Schedule’ (section 38) of the Banking Company Act 1991 (amendment up to 2013) and
BRPD circular no. 14 dated: 25 June 2003 and subsequent guidelines of BB. In the prescribed format there is no
option to present assets and liabilities under current and non-current classifications.

ii) Other Comprehensive Income

IFRS: As per IAS 1, Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is a component of financial statements or the
elements of OCI are to be included in a single Other Comprehensive Income statement.

Bangladesh Bank: Bangladesh Bank has issued templates for financial statements which will strictly be
followed by all banks. The templates of financial statements issued by Bangladesh Bank do not include Other
Comprehensive Income nor are the elements of Other Comprehensive Income allowed to be included in i
single Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Statement. As such the Bank does not prepare the other
comprehensive income statement. However, the elements of OCI, if any, are shown in the statements of
changes in equity.

iii) Investment in shares and securities

IFRS: As per requirements of IFRS 9 investment in shares and securities generally falls either under “at fair
value through profit and loss account” or under “available for sale” where any change in the fair value (as
measured in accordance with IFRS 13) at the year-end is taken to profit and loss account or revaluation reserve
respectively.
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Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD circular no. 14 dated: 25 June 2003 investments in quoted shares and
unquoted shares are revalued at the year end at market price and as per book value of last audited balance sheet
respectively. Provision should be made for any loss arising from diminution in value of investment; otherwise
investments are recognized at cost.

iv) Provision on investments and off-balance sheet exposure

IFRS: As per IFRS 9 an entity should start the impairment assessment by considering whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant. For financial assets that are not
individually significant, the assessment can be performed on an individual or collective (portfolio) basis.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular no.14 dated: 23 September 2012, BRPD Circular no.05 dated:29 May
2013, BRPD Circular no.12 dated:20 August 2017, BRPD Circular no.01 dated:20 February 2018 and BRPD
Circular n0.52 dated:20 October 2020 a general provision at 0.25% to 2% under different categories of
unclassified investment (Standard and SMA Investment) has to be maintained regard less of objective evidence
of impairment. Also Specific provision for Sub-Standard investment, Doubtful investment and Bad/Loss has to
be maintained at 20%, 50% and 100% respectively for classified investments on the basis of investment
Classification.

Further, as per BRPD Circular No. 15 dated: 27 September 2017, provision for short Term Agriculture and
Micro credit at 1% for all unclassified investment (Regular and irregular), 5% for classified as sub-standard and
Doubtful and 100% for classified as Bad /Loss.

It is also noticeable here that, as pet BRPD Circular No.16 dated: 21July 2020, provision for cottage, Micro and
small investment under CMSME investment at 0.25% for all unclassified investment (Standard and SMA
Investment) has to be maintained, 5% for sub-standard,20% for Doubtful and 100% respectively for classified
investments.

Furthermore, As per BRPD Circular no.14 dated: 23 September.2012, BRPD Circular no.07 dated: 21 June 2018
and BRPD Circular no.13 dated: 18 October 2018, a general provision 0%, 0.50%, 0.75% and 1% is required to
be maintained for all off balance sheet exposures excluding bill for collection depending on Bangladesh Bank
rating grade equivalence of Bank/Financial institute/Organization providing the counter Guarantee, such
provision policies are not specify in line with those prescribed by IFRS-9.

v) Recognition of investment income in suspense

IFRS: Investment to customers are generally classified as Investment in General (loans and receivables) as per
IAS 39 and Investment income is recognized through effective profit rate method over the term of the
Investment. Once an investment (loan) is impaired, investment income is recognized in profit and loss account
on the same basis based on revised carrying amount.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD circular no. 14 dated: 23 September 2012, once an investment (loan) is
classified, investment income on such investments are not allowed to be recognized as income, rather the
corresponding amount needs to be credited to an investment income in suspense account, which is presented as
liability in the balance sheet. In case of rescheduled investment the unrealized income, if any, will be credited to
investment income in suspense account instead of crediting the same to income account.

vi) Financial Instruments — Presentation and disclosure
In several cases Bangladesh Bank guidelines categories, recognize, measure and present financial mstruments
differently from those prescribed in IFRS 9. As such full disclosure and presentation requirements of TFRN 7

and IAS 32 cannot be made in the financial statements.
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vii) Financial guarantees

IFRS: As per IFRS 9, financial guarantees are contracts that require an entity to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee liabilities are recognized initially at their fair
value, and the initial fair value is amortized over the life of the financial guarantee. The financial guarantec
liability is subsequently carried at the higher of this amortized amount and the present value of any expected
payment when a payment under the guarantee has become probable. Financial guarantees are included within
other liabilities.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD 15/2009 financial guarantees such as letter of credit, letter of guarantee will
be treated as off-balance sheet items. No liability is recognized for the guarantee except the cash margin.

viii) Balance with Bangladesh Bank (Cash Reserve Requirement)

IFRS: Balance with Bangladesh Bank should be treated as other asset as it is not available for use in day to day
operations as per IAS 7 “Statements of Cash Flows™.

Bangladesh Bank: Balance with Bangladesh Bank is treated as cash and cash equivalents.
ix) Cash flow statement

IFRS: The Cash flow statement can be prepared using ecither the direct method or the indirect method. The
presentation is selected to present these cash flows in a manner that is most appropriate for the business or
industry. The method selected is applied consistently.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD 14 dated: 25 June 2003 and BRPD 15 dated: 09 November 2009, cash flow
statement is to be prepared following a mixture of direct and indirect methods.

x) Presentation of intangible asset

IFRS: An intangible asset must be identified and recognized, and the disclosure must be given as per TAS 38.
Bangladesh Bank: Intangible Assets are shown m fixed Assets including premises, Furniture and fixtures and
intangible Assets, there is no regulation for intangible assets in BRPD circular no. 14 dated: 25 June 2003 and
BRPD 15 dated: 09 November 2009.

xi) Non-banking assets

IFRS: No indication of Non-banking asset is found in any IFRS and TAS.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD circular no. 15 dated: 09 November 2009, and BRPD Circular no.22 dared:
20 September 2021 there must exist a face items /separate Balance sheet item title named as Non-banking asser.
xii) Off-balance sheet items

IFRS: As per IFRS, there 1s no requirement for disclosure of off-balance sheet items on the face of the balance
sheet.




Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD circular no. 14 dated: 25 June 2003 and BRPD 15 dated: 09 November 2009,
off- balance sheet items (e.g. Letter of credit, Letter of guarantee and acceptance etc.) must be disclosed
separately on the face of the balance sheet.

xiii) Investments net off provision
IFRS: As per IFRS-09, Loans and advances/Investments should be presented net off provision.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD circular no.14 dated: 25 June 2003 and BRPD Circular No. 15 dared:0Y
November 2009 provision on investments are presented separately as liability and cannot be net-off against
Investments (loans and advances).

xiv) Disclosure of appropriation of profit

IFRS: There is no requirement to show appropriation of profit in the face of statement of comprehensive
mncome.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD circular no. 14 dated: 25 June 2003, an appropriation of profit should be
disclosed in the face of profit and loss account.

xv) Revenue

As per IFRS 15, revenue should be recognized on accrual basis but due to the unique nature of Islamic Banks.
income from investment under Mudaraba, Musharaka, Bai-Salam, and Ujarah modes (Tamin Card) 1s accounted
for on realization basis as pet AAOIFI and Bangladesh Bank guidelines.

xvi) Charges on tax on retained earnings, reserve, and surplus as per Income tax ordinance (ITO) 1984

As per section 16(G) of the income tax ordinance 1984, Listed companies should disclose proposed dividend in
the balance sheet as "among to be distributed as dividend". However there is no provision for this in BRPD 14
dated: 25 June 2003 and BRPD 15 dated: 09 November 2009 and IFRS also restricts to disclose such
presentation in the balance sheet.

2.2 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of First Security Islami Bank Limited and
its subsidiaries company First Security Islami Capital & Investment Limited and First Security Islamit Exchange
Italy S.R.L. made up to the end of the December 31, 2022. Due to Global covid-19 pandemic situation and time
gape the un-audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 of First Security Islami Exchange
Italy SRL are consolidated at closing rate. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared im
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 10-“Consolidated Financial Statements™ The
Consolidated Financial Statements ate prepared for the common financial year ended 31 December 2022.

All intra-group transactions, balances, are eliminated at the time of consolidation. Profit and loss resulting from
transactions is also eliminated from consolidated financial statements.
2.3 Investment in subsidiaries in the Bank separate financial statements

When the Bank prepares separate financial statements, it accounts for investments in subsidiaries at cost
accordance with IAS-27.
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2.4 Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated and separate financial statements of the Bank are presented in Bangladeshi Taka which is the
functional currency of the Bank and its subsidiaries except for Off-shore Banking Unit (OBU) where the
functional currency is US Dollar (USD). All financial information presented in Taka (BDT) has been rounded to
the nearest integer, except otherwise indicated.

2.5 Use of Estimates and Judgments

In the preparation of the financial statements management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of asserts, liabilitics,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumpuons are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The most critical estimates and judgments are applied to the following;

1) provision for investment as explained in Note 3.1.4
2) Retirement benefit of employees as explained in Note 3.2.7
3) Deferred tax Asset/Liability as explained in Note 3.2.6.2

2.6 Comparative information and re-arrangement thereof

Comparative figures have been re-arranged wherever considered necessary to ensure suitable comparability with
the current period without causing any impact on the profit and values of assets and liabilities as reported in the
financial statements.

2.7 Going Concern

When preparing financial statements of the bank, the Managements make an assessment of the bank’s ability 1o
continue as a going concern assumption that the bank will continue in operation over the foreseeable fururc.
The bank prepares financial statements on a going concern basts.

2.8 Accrual basis of accounting

The Bank prepares its financial statements other than cash flow statement, using the accrual basis of accounting
Since the accrual basis of accounting is used the bank recognizes items as assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses when they satisfy the definition and recognition criteria for those elements in the Framework.

2.9 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.10 Reporting period

These financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries cover one calendar year from 01 January 2022 to 31
December 2022,

2.11 Basis of measurement

Measurement is the process of determining the monetary amounts at which the elements of the financil
statements are to be recognized and carried in the financial statements. The measurement basis adopted by the
Bank is historical cost except for land, building and few of the financial assets which are stated in accordancc
with the policies mentioned in the respective notes.




2.12 Statement of Cash Flow

Cash flow statement is to be prepared as it provides information about cash flows of the enterprise which s
useful in providing users of financial statements with a basis to assess the ability of the enterprise to generatc
cash and cash equivalents and the needs of the enterprise to utilize those cash flows. Cash flow statement has
been prepared under an adopted method of direct and indirect for the period, classified by operating, investing
and financing activities in accordance with the BRPD Circular No. 14 dated: 25 June 2003 and BRPD Circular
No. 15, dated: 09 November 2009 issued by Bangladesh Bank as well as requirements of IAS 7.

2.13 Statement of Changes in Equity

The statement of changes in equity reflects information about the increase or decrease in net assets or wealth.
Statement of changes in equity has been prepared in accordance with IAS-1 and relevant guidelines of
Bangladesh Bank & BRPD Circular No.14 dated: 25 June 2003.

2.14 Liquidity Statement

The liquidity statement of assets and liabilities as on the reporting date has been prepared on residual maturiiy
term as per the following basts.

*  Balance with other Banks and financial institutions, money at call and short notice, etc. are on the basis
of their residual maturity rerm;

* Investments are on the basis of their respective residual maturity;

*  General Investments are on the basis of their repayment schedule.

»  Fixed assets are on the basis of their useful life;

= Other assets are on the basis of their realization / amortization;

* Borrowing from other Banks, financial institutions and agents, etc. are as per their residual maturnty |
repayment term;

* Deposits and other accounts are on the basis of their residual maturity term and past trend of
withdrawal by the depositors;

»  Provisions and other liabilities are on the basis of their payment / adjustments schedule.

2.15 Accounting for Changes in Policy, accounting estimates and errors

The bank changes its accounting policy only if the change is required by IFRS or Bangladesh Bank Guidelnes or
results in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of
transactions, other events or conditions on the entity’s financial position, Financial performance or cash flows.
As a result of the uncertainties inherent in business activities, many items in financial statements cannot b
measured with precision but can only be estimared.

As per 1AS-8 accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors states that the effect of changes in
accounting policy, is to be applied retrospectively in accordance with paragraph 19 of IAS-8, by adjusting the
opening balance of each affected component of equity for the earliest prior period presented and the other
comparative amounts disclosed for each prior periods presented as if the new accounting policy had always been

applied.

If need connection of material prior periods error, is to be applied retrospectively restating the comparatives
amount for the prior periods presented, in which the error occurred or if the error occurred before, adjusting the
opening balance of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest prior period presented .

For changing in Accounting Estimate is to be applied prospectively by including it in profit or loos in the period
of the changes.




2.16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases, defines a lease as “A contract or part of a contract that conveys the right to use an asset for 2
period of time in exchange for consideration”. In order for such a contract to exist the user of the asset needs to

have the right to:

v Obtain substantially all the economic benefits from the use of asset (identifiable asset)
v" The right to direct the use of asset

A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying assct)
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To apply this definition the Bank assesses whether the
contract meets two key evaluations which are whether:

v the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Bank

v the Bank has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract the
Bank has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The Bank assess
whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of

usc.

The Bank depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis over the remaining useful life of the assct.
The Bank also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including m
substance fixed), amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, payments arising from
options reasonably certain to be exercised and variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate.

The Bank has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical
expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are
recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

On the statement of financial position, right-of-use assets have been included in property, plant and equipment
and lease liabilides have been included other liabilities.

2.17 Accruals & Deferrals

Accruals and deferrals have been made as per the guidance of IAS # 1: Presentation of Financial Statements. In
order to meet their objectives, financial statements except for Statement of Cash Flow and related information
are prepared on accrual basis of accounting, Under this basis, the effects of transactions and other events arc
trecognized when they occur (and not when cash or its equivalent is received or paid) and they are recorded m
accounts and reported in the financial statements of the periods to which they relate.

2.18 Foreign currency transactions

2.18.1 Initial recognition

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency art the
date of the transaction.

2.18.2 Subsequent measurement

A foreign currency transaction may give rise to assets or liabilities that are denominated 1n a foreign currency
These assets and liabilities is translated into the Bank's functional currency at each reporting date. However,
rranslation depends on whether the assets or liabilities are monerary or non-monetary items.

28




Monetary items

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the end of the reporting date are translated using the closing
rate. The difference between this amount and the previous carrying amount in functional currency ts an
exchange gain or loss. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the
period or in previous financial statements is recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they anise.

Non-monetary items

Non-monetary items carried at historic cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction
when the asset arose (historical rate). They are not subsequently retranslated in the individual financial
statements of the Bank. Non-monetary items carried at fair value are translated using the exchange rate at the
date when the fair value was determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in equity, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognized in equity. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

2.18.3 Translation of foreign currency financial statement

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into presentation currency in the current statement
of financial position using the closing rate at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations
are translated at spot exchange rates at the date of transactions as long as practicable; otherwise average rate of
exchange has been used. Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognized in equity under the
head translation reserve.

3.00 Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these
financial statements and have been applied consistently by the Bank.

3.1 Assets and basis of their valuation

3.1.1 Cash and cash equivalent

As per BRPD circular no. 15 dated: 09 November 2009 and IAS-7, cash and cash equivalents include notes and
coins in hand, balances lying with ATM, unrestricted balance held with Bangladesh Bank and its agent Bank and
balance with other Banks and Financial Institutions.

3.1.2 Balance with Bangladesh Bank (Cash Reserve Requirement- CRR)

IAS 7 requires balance with Bangladesh Bank to be treated as other assets. However, as per BRPD circular no
15, FSIBL treats balance with Bangladesh Bank as cash and cash equivalent though the amount is restricred for
CRR purpose and cannot be used in our day to day operational requirement.

3.1.3 Investment in Shares and Securities

a) The bank investment in different securities has been valued on 31.12.2022 as under:

Quoted Shares at Cost
Un-Quoted Shares (CDBL Share) at Cost
Bangladesh Govt. Islamic Bond at Cost

All investments in securities are initially recognized at cost, including acquisition charges associated wirh the
investment.




As per BRPD Circular # 15 dated: 09 November 2009, investment in quoted shares and un-quoted shares arc
revalued at the year end at market price and as per book value of last audited balance sheet respectvely.
Provision should be made for any loss arising from diminution in value of investment. As such the company
measures and recognizes investment in are higher than the cost. However as per requirements of International
Accounting Standard (IAS)-39, investment in shares falls either under “at fair value through profit and loss
account” or under “available for sale” where any change in the fair value at the year-end is taken to profit and
loss account or revaluation reserve respectively. FSIBL recognizes its investment in shares and securities and
accounted for the required provision for diminution in value of shares and securities in the profit and loss
account as per BRPD Circular # 15 dated: 09 November 2009 issued by Bangladesh Bank.

b) Revaluation gains/losses on Government Securities

FSIBL. is a Bank running on Islamic Sharia’h Principal. Hence, we do not participate in buying interest bearing
Government securities.

3.1.4 Investments and provisions for investments:

Investments are recognized at gross amount on the date on which they are originated. After initial recognition
investments are stated in the Balance Sheet net off profit receivable and unearned income. However, provision
for investments are not net-off with investments.

Profit Receivable — the amount of unexpired portion of profit charged on Bai-Murabaha investment at the time
of sale of goods/ services to customer/ client.

Unearned Income - the amount of unrealized portion of profit/ value addition of fixed assets [property, plant &
equipment] under Hire Purchase Under Shirkatul Melk (HPSM) investment for gestation period. Investments are
stated in the Balance Sheet at the net amount excluding unearned income.

As per 1AS-36 impairment assessment should be done by considering whether any objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant. For financial assets that are not individually
significant, the assessment can be performed on an individual or collective (portfolio) basis.

However, provision for classified and unclassified investment is made on the basis of year and review by the
management and of instructions contained in Bangladesh Bank BRPD Circular No.14 dated: 23 September
2012, BRPD Circular No.05 dated: 29 May 2013, BRPD Circular No.08 dated: 02 August 2015, BRPD Circular
No.12 dated: 20 August 2017, BRPD Circular No.15 dated: 27 September,2017 BRPD Circular No.01 dated: 20
February 2018, BRPD Circular No. 07 dated: 21 June,2018, BRPD Circular No. 13 dated:18 October
2018,BRPD Circular No.03 dated: 21 April 2019, BRPD circular letter no.07,dated: 19 March 2020 BRPD
Circular No.16 dated:21 July 2020,BRPD Circular No.17 dated: 28 September 2020, BRPD Circular Letter
No.52 dated: 20 October 2020, BRPD Circular Letter No. 56 dated: 10 December,2020,BRPD Circular Letter
No.63 dated: 31 December, 2020, BRPD Circular No.-03, dated: 31 January 2021, BRPD Circular No.-12, dated:
13 June 2021, BRPD Circular No.-13, dated: 27 June 2021, BRPD Circular No.- 19, dated: 26 August 2021,
BRPD Circular No.-50 dated: 14 December 2021, BRPD Circular Letter No.- 51, dated: 29 December 2021,
BRPD Circular Letter No.-52, dated: 29 December 2021 and BRPD Circular Letter No.-53, dated: 30 December
2021 at the following rates:
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a) General Provision: Provision on standard

Particulars Rate
Unclassified Investment for SME 0.25%
All other unclassified investment except SME investment 1%
Investment for Consumer Financing 2%
Investment for House Financing under consumer financing 1%
Investment for credit card finance under consumer financing 2%
Investment to Professionals to set up business under consumer 2%
Investment to Broker house, marchent bank stock dealers etc. 2%

b) Special Mention Account: (Same as standard)

c) Specific Provision on:

Substandard 20%
Doubtful 50%
Bad/ Loss 100%

d) Provision for Short Term Agricultural and Micro-Credit:

1)  All unclassified investment (Irregular and regular) 1%
2) Classified as sub-standard and doubtful 5%
3) Bad/loss 100%

¢) Provision for off-Balance sheet Exposure:

As per the referred circular, banks are required to maintain 1% general provision -xgamst the guarantees, FSIBL.
issues for clients of FSIBL since guarantee is an off-balance sheet expenses. As per BRPD Circular no.7 dated
07 June 2018, banks were given exemption from maintaining any provision for those guarantees against which
the counter guarantee are issued only by the multilateral development banks (MDBS)/International banks
having a BB rating grade-1 equivalent outline in the guidelines on risk based capital adequacy.

As per BRPD circular no.13 dated: 18 October 2018, the provision requirement for the bank to be maintained in
the following way:

BB Rating grade equivalence of the
Bank/FI/Organization providing the counter Provision requirement
guarantee
1 Nil -
2 0.50 ]
3or4 0.75 |
Others 1.00 |

f) Provision for cottage, Micro and small investment under CMSME:

1) All unclassified (Standard and SMA) 0.25%
i) Sub-Standard : 5%
i) Doubtful : 20%
iv) Bad and loss ; 100%

When an investment is deemed to be uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision for impairments.
Subsequent recoveries of such investments are credited to the income statement.

Investment are normally written off, when there is no chance of recovery of these amounts in accordance with
BRPD Circular no. 2 dated: 13 January 2003, BRPD Circular no. 15 dated: 23 September 2012 and BRPD
circular no. 13 dated: 07 November 2013. A separate Investment Monitoring and Recovery Division (IMRI))
have been set up at the Head Office, which monitors investment recovery and legal action.
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3.1.5 Impairment of financial assets

An asset is impaired when its carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount as per TAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”. Recoverable amount is higher of Fair value less cost of sell amount and value in use amount Fair value
less cost to sell is the price that would be received to sell the assets in an orderly transaction between markel
participants at the measurement date less the direct incremental cost attributable to the disposal of the asscts.
Value in use: Cash flow projection are based on the most recent management approved budget forecasts. \1
cach balance sheet date, First Security Islami Bank Limited assesses whether there is objective evidence that
financial asset or a group of financial assets ie, Investment and off balance sheet items is impaired. A financul
asset or group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if there is objective evidence ol
impairment as a result of a loss event that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset up to the balance
sheet date; the loss event had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets; and a reliable estimate of the loss amount can be made.

In the event of impairment loss, the Bank reviews whether a further allowance for impairment should be
provided in the profit and loss statement in addition to the provision made based on Bangladesh Bank
guidelines or other regulatory requirements. As per IAS -36, impairment loss are accounted for in the same way
as IAS-16, Property, Plant and Equipment revaluation.

3.1.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement

All fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation as per [AS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”
1s measured at cost.

The cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the Fair value of the other consideration given to
acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amount attributed fo that
asset when initially recognized in accordance with the specific requirements of the TFRS.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and the cost of the item can be measurcd
reliably. These recognition criteria apply to subsequence expenditure as well as cost incurred ininally. Once
recognized as an assets, items should initially be measure at cost.

The cost of an items of property, plant and equipment comprises:

(a) its purchase price, including import duties and non- refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates

(b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for 1t to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management

(c) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it s
located, the obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having
used the item during a particular period for purpose other than to produce inventories during that period.

Subsequent Cost

The cost of replacing part of an item of fixed assets is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if 1t s
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the company and its cost can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of fixed assets are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.




De-recognition of property, plant and equipment

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future
cconomic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment is included as other income in profit or loss when the item is derecognized.

Depreciation

No depreciation is charged on land. Depreciation is charged on straight-line method. Charging depreciation
against fixed assets commences from the month of acquisition (for full month) when the assets is in the location
and condition necessary for its intended use and ceases at the month when the assets are disposed. Assel
category-wise depreciation rates are as follows:

Nature of Assets Rate of Depreciation Method of Depreciation
Building 2.5% Straight Line Method
Furniture and Fixtures 10% Reducing Balance Method
Office Equipment 20% Reducing Balance Method
Computer Printer & Peripheral 20% Straight Line Method
Vehicles 20% Straight Line Method
Books 20% Reducing Balance Method

3.1.7 Presentation of Intangible Asset

Recognition

Thee recognition of an item as an intangible asset requires the Bank to demonstrate that the item meets the
definition of an intangible asset and the recognition criteria. As per IAS-38, an Intangible Assets is an
identification non-monetary assets without physical substance. An intangible assets is identificable if 1t 15
separable (that is it can be sold, transferred, exchanged, licensed or ranted to another party. An intangible asset
is recognized as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that expected future economic benefits that are attributable
to the asset will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Measurement

An intangible asset is measured at cost less any accumulated amortizations and any accumulated impairment
losses. Subsequent expenditures are likely to maintain the expected future economic benefits embodied in an
existing intangible asset rather than meet the definition of an intangible asset and the recognition criteria,
Therefore, expenditure incurred after the initial recognition of an acquired intangible asset or after completion ot
an internally generated intangible asset is usually recognized in profit or loss as incurred. On disposal of an
intangible assets, the gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Amortization

The depreciable amount of an intangible asset with a finite useful life shall be allocated on a systematc basis
over its useful life. Amortization begin when the asset is available for use, 1.e. when it is in the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Amortization
ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale and the date that the asset 1s
derecognized. The rates used for amortizing intangible assets 1s 20.00%.An intangible asset with an indefinite life
should not be amortized as per TAS-38,
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3.1.8 Revaluation

Land and building are revalued as per International Accounting Standard (IAS)-16, Property, Plant and
Equipment’ as well as Bangladesh Bank BCD Circular Letter No. 12 & 18, dated: 20 April 1993 & 15 June 1993,
respectively and BRPD Circular # 10 and 09, dated: 25 November 2002 and 31 December 2008 respectively.
The Bank revalued its land & building in the year 2012. Reserve is created by the sum of revaluation surplus and
depreciation is charged on the revalued assets except land as per the respective rate of depreciation. If revalued
is in upward than the gain/difference should be recognized as revaluation surplus. A decrease in carrying
amount on revaluation should be recognized as an expenses in profit or loss account.

3.1.9 Impairment of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, the Bank assesses whether there is any indication that the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An asset is carried at more than its recoverable amount if its carrying
amount exceeds the amount to be recovered through use or sale of the asset. If this is the case, the asset 1s
described as impaired and an impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the profit and loss statement unless
the asset is carried at revalued amount in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 16, Property,
Plant and Equipment in which case any impairment loss of a revalued asset should be treated as a revaluation
decrease under that Accounting Standard. No impairment loss was recognized up to the reporting period as
there were no such indication existed as on Balance Sheet date. As per IAS-16, allows a reserve transfer of the
excess depreciation which is recognized in statement of changes in equity.

3.1.10 Other assets

Other assets include all other financial assets and include fees and other unrealized income receivable, advance
for operating and capital expenditure and stocks of stationery and stamps.

3.111 Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is accounted for under the cost method of accounting in the Bank’s fmancial
statements in accordance with the TAS 27 “Separate Financial Statements”, IFRS 3 “Business Combination™,
IFRS 36 “Impairment of Assets” and IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”.

3.112 Non-banking Assets

As per BRPD circular no. 15 dated: 15 September 2009 and 22 dated: 20 September 2021,Non-banking asscts
are acquired on account of the failure of a client to repay the investment in time after receiving the decree from
the court regarding the right and title of the mortgaged property.

3.2 Liabilities and provisions
3.2.1 Placement from bank & other financial institution

Placement from banks and other financial institutions are stated in the financial statement at principal amount of
the outstanding balance.

3.2.2 Deposits and other Accounts

Deposit and other accounts include Al-Wadia Current Deposit, Mudarabah Saving Deposit, Mudarabah Term
Deposit and other Mudaraba deposits. Deposits by customers and banks are recognized when the Bank enters
into contractual agreements with the counterparties. These items are brought to Financial Statements at the
gross value of the outstanding balance.

3.2.3 Mudaraba Subordinated Bond

The bank issued FSIBL 2nd Mudaraba Subordinated Bond (Private Placement) amounting to BD'T 450.00 (I'our
hundred fifty) crore only through private placement with 7 years maturity for enhancement of Tier-IT capital as
per requirement of Basel —II1. The semi-annual profit has already been paid up to 31/12/2022. However, the
amount of Tk. 270.00 crore had already been paid up to December 2022 as principal redemption. The rate ot
profit will be calculated at prevailing Mudaraba Term Deposit Profit Rate (Provisional) in 6 Months tenor plus
additional 1.25% (indicative/ provisional) per annum on the outstanding balance of the bond from pre-1ax
profit/ operating income of the Bank.
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The bank issued FSIBL 3rd Mudaraba Subordinated Bond (Private Placement) amounting of BDT 700.00
(Seven hundred) crore only through private placement with 7 years maturity for enhancement of Tier-1I capital
as per requirement of Basel —II1. The semi-annual profit has already been paid up to 31/12/2022. However, the
amount of Tk. 140.00 crore had already been paid up to December 2022 as principal redemption. The rate of
profit will be calculated at prevailing Mudaraba Term Deposit Profit Rate (Provisional) in 6 Months tenor plus
additional 1.75% (indicative/ provisional) per annum on the outstanding balance of the bond from pre-tax
profit/ operating income of the Bank.

3.2.4 Mudaraba Perpetual Bond

Mudaraba Perpetual Bond (MPD) was issued by the Bank under the Mudaraba principles of Islamic Shar'ah as
per approval of Bangladesh Bank Letter No. BRPD (BPIS)661/14B(P)/2020-9530 dated: 09 November 2020
and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Letter No. BSEC/CI/DS-135/PB/2020/291 dated: (19
December 2020. Green Delta Insurance Company Limited is the Trustee of the MPB. . It is treated as »
component of Additional Tier-I Capital (AT-I). The instrument subordinated to the claims of other creditors
and depositors. In the case of liquidation the subordinated debt holders would be paid just before paying to the
shareholders assuming there are assets to distribute after all other liabilities and debts have been paid. The
Mudaraba Perpetual Bond (MPB) is perpetual in nature ie. infinite maturity. Profit paid against Mudaraba
Perpetual Bond is the published deposit rate to be taken from “Announced Profit rate chart of the scheduled
banks (Deposit rate) (1 year but < 2 Year)” published by Bangladesh Bank in Its website and an additional profit
margin @ 2.50%.

3.2.5 Provisions

3.2.5.1 Provision for investments

Provision for investments is made on the basis of quarter-end review by the management and instructions
contained in BRPD Circular No.14 dated: 23 September 2012, BRPD Circular No.05 dated: 29 May 2013,
BRPD Circular No.08 dated: 02 August 2015, BRPD Circular No.12 dated: 20 August 2017, BRPD Circular
No.15 dated: 27 September,2017 BRPD Circular No.01 dated: 20 February 2018, BRPD Circular No.03 dated:
21 April 2019, BRPD circular letter no.07,dated: 19 March 2020 BRPD Circular No.16 dated:21 July
2020,BRPD Circular No.17 dated: 28 September 2020, BRPD Circular Letter No.52 dated: 20 October 2020,
BRPD Circular Letter No. 56 dated: 10 December,2020,BRPD Circular Letter No.63 dated: 31 December, 2020,
BRPD Circular No.-03, dated: 31 January 2021, BRPD Circular No.-12, dated: 13 June 2021, BRPD Circular
No.-13, dated: 27 June 2021, BRPD Circular No.- 19, dated: 26 August 2021, BRPD Circular No.-50 dated: 14
December 2021, BRPD Circular Letter No.- 51, dated: 29 December 2021, BRPD Circular Letter No.-52, dated:
29 December 2021 and BRPD Circular Letter No.-53, dated: 30 December 2021.

3.2.5.2 Provision for diminution of value of shares and securities

Provision for diminution of value of shares and mutual funds, placed under other liability, has been made on
portfolio basis (gain/loss net off) following DOS circular No. 04 dated: 24 November 2011, DOS circular no.
03 dated: 12 March 2015 and DOS circular no. 10 dated: 28 June 2015 respectively. Details are stated in Note
17.2 of these financial statements.

3.2.5.3 Provision for off balance sheet exposures

In compliance with BRPD circular no. 14 dated: 23 September 2012, BRPD Circular No.7 dated: 21 June 2018
and BRPD Circular No.13 dated: 18 October 2018 the Bank has been maintaining provision against off balance
sheet exposures.

3.2.5.4 Provision for nostro accounts

According to guidelines of Foreign Exchange Policy Department of Bangladesh Bank, circular no. FEOD
(FEMO)/01/2005-677 dated: 13 September 2005, Bank is required to make provision regarding the un
reconciled debit balance as at balance sheet date. It is reviewed semi-annually by our management along with
duly certified by the external auditor.
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3.2.6 Taxation

Tax expenses represent the sum of the tax which are payable during the current period.

3.2.6.1 Current Tax

Provision for corporate current income tax has been made @ 37.50% for business income and other applicable
rate for other operating income as prescribed in the Finance Act 2022 of the accounting profit made by the
Bank after considering some of the add backs to income and disallowances of expenditure as per income tax
laws incompliance with IAS 12 Income Taxes. Provision of current income tax has been made on taxable

income of the Bank as per following rates:

Type of Income 2022 2021
Business Income 37.50% 37.50%
Capital Gain 10%-15% 10%-15%
Other Income (Dividend income) 20% 20%

3.2.6.2 Deferred Tax
Principle of recognition

The bank accounted for deferred tax as per IAS-12 income taxes. Deferred tax is accounted for any temporary
difference between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
base. Deferred tax is recognized as income or an expense amount within the tax charge, and included in the net
profit or loss for the period. Deferred tax relating to items dealt with directly in equity is recognized directly in

equity.
Recognition of taxable temporary difference

A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill; or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
which is not a business combination; and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor
taxable profit (tax loss).

Recognition of deductible temporary difference

A deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it 1s probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utlized, unless the
deferred tax asset atises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination; and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Measurement

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax on revaluation

The revaluation does not affect taxable profits in the period of revaluation and consequently, the tax base of the
asset is not adjusted. Hence a temporary difference arises. An upward revaluation will therefore give rise to a
deferred tax liability. FSIBL recognizes the underlying revaluation directly in equity, so the deferred tax thereon
is also recognized as part of tax relating to equity. FSIBL transfers each year from revaluation surplus to retained
earnings an amount equal to the difference between the depreciation based on the cost of that asset. The
amount transferred is net off any related deferred tax.
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3.2.7 Retirement Benefits of Employees

Required in IAS 19, employee benefits, provident fund and gratuity benefits are given to eligible statt of the
bank in accordance with the locally registered rules and the entity shall disclose the amount recognized as an
expense for defined contribution plan. Details of the benefits plans are given below:

3.2.7.1 Provident Fund

Provident fund benefits are given to staffs of FSIBL in accordance with the locally registered Provident Fund
Rules. The employees' provident fund is administered by a Board of Trustees and is funded by contributions of
both employees and the Bank at predetermined rate @ 10% of basic salary in equal portion. These contributions
are invested separately from the assets of FSIBL and the profit on such contributions credited to the members’
account. The Fund recognized by the National Board of Revenue.

3.2.7.2 Gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees, under which an employee 15
entitled to get the benefits if his length of service is Seven (07) years in accordance with prevailing service rule as
on 31 December 2022,

3.2.7.3 Social Security Benevolent Fund
The Bank operates a social security benevolent fund by all employees’ contribution for the sake of death and
disability of employees.

3.2.7.4 Employees Group Life Insurance Fund

The First Security Islami Bank Limited makes Employees Group Life Insurance Fund commence with effect
from 19t September 2019. The purpose of the fund is to provide medical and death cum survival benefit in licu
of group insurance (death cum endowment). The fund shall be subscribed by the employees on yearly basis and
with the contribution of the Bank.

3.2.7.5 Workers' profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

As per Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006 as amended in 2013 all companies fall within the scope of WPPF (which
includes Bank) are required to provide 5% of its profit before charging such expense to their eligible employees
within the stipulated time. The Banking Companies Act 1991 section 11 subsection b (i) which states: “Quote
No banking company shall employ any person whose remuneration or part of whose remuneration takes the
form of Commission or of a share in the profit of the company Unquote”. As per the definition of “Worker”
stated under section 2(65) Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006, whether employees of a bank are “Worker’ or not, 1t 1s
not clear. In this regard, it is mentionable here that Banking Regulation and policy Department, Bangladesh
Bank requested Ministry of Labour and Employment for clarification through the letter ref. no. BRPD (R-2)
651/9 (Miscellaneous)/2018-1336, dated 14/02/2018 but the issue has not been resolved yet.

As the requirement of Labour Act contradicts with Banking Companies Act and employees of Bank cannot be
termed as a worker under section 2(65), Bangladesh Labour Act 2006, the fund cannot be established without
the specific directives from appropriate authorities.

3.2.8 Profit/Rent/Compensation Suspense Account

Profit/rent/compensation accrued on classified investments are suspended and accounted for as per BRPD
Circular # 15, dated: 09 November 2009 issued by the Bangladesh Bank. Moreover, income that are irregular
(doubtful) as per Sharia’h are not included in the distributable income of the Bank.

Income on unclassified overdue investment of Bai-Murabaha and Bai-Muazzal is charged under compensation
account instead of showing as income of the Bank.

3.2.9 Other liabilities

Other liabilities comprise items such as provision for investments, provision for taxes, profit payable, profit
suspense, accrued expenses, obligation under finance lease etc. Other liabilities are recognized in the balance
sheet according to the guidelines of Bangladesh Bank, income tax laws and internal policy of the Bank.
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3.3 Capital/Shareholders’ Equity
3.3.1 Authorized capital

Authorized capital is the maximum amount of share capital that the Bank is authorized by its Memorandum and
Articles of Association.

3.3.2  Paid up Capital

Paid up capital represents total amount of shareholder capital that has been paid in full by the ordinary
shareholders. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to vote at shareholders’ meetings. In the event of a winding-up of the Bank, ordinary sharcholders rank
after all other shareholders and creditors and are fully entitled to any residual proceeds of liquidation. Details arc
shown in Note-17.1.

3.3.3 Statutory Reserve

Statutory reserve has been maintained @ 20% of profit before tax in accordance with provisions of section 2
of the Bank Companies Act, 1991 (as amended up to 2013) until such reserve equal to its paid up capital
together with the share premium.

3.3.4 Asset Revaluation Reserve

When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of revaluation, the surplus amount should be credited
directly to equity under the heading of revaluation surplus/reserve as per IAS-16: “Property, Plant and
Equipment”. The bank revalued the entire land and building during the year 2012 by an independent valuation
firm according to paragraph 36 of IAS-16 which is absolutely owned by the bank. As per IAS-16, Revaluation
reserve is transferred to other reserve in each year during the life time of those assets.

3.3.5 Non-controlling (minority) interest

Non-controlling (minority) interest is that portion of the profit or loss and net assets of the subsidiary (First
Security Islami Capital & Investment Limited) attributable to equity interests that are not owned, directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, by the parent (First Security Islami Bank Limited). Minority interest is reported
on the consolidated balance sheet to reflect the claim on assets belonging to the other non-controlling
shareholder. Also, minority interest is reported on the consolidated income statement as a share of profit
belonging to the minority shareholder.

3.3.6 Regulatory capital in line with Basel-111

Till December 2014, as per Revised Regulatory Capital Framework in line with Basel I, full amount of general
provision for unclassified investments and off balance sheet items & Mudaraba Subordinated Bond as capital
gone-concern. However, as per Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy (Revised Regulatory Capital
Framework for Banks in line with Basel-III), BRPD No.18, dated: 21 December 2014, Assets Revaluation
Reserve and Revaluation Reserve of Securities has gradually been deducted in a transitional arrangement starting
from January 2015 to December 2019 (20% each year). Accordingly regulatory capital for the period has been
calculated complying with all of these changes as per Revised Regulatory Capital Framework for Banks in line
with Basel-111.

3.4 Off-balance sheet items
Contingent Liabilities
Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Bank:
or any present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

* It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle

the obligation; or
* The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
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As per TAS 37, Contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is reliably estimated. Contingent assets are
not recognized in the financial statements as this may results in the recognition of income which may never be
realized. However, the amount of cash margin is recognized as liability. As per BRPD Circular # 15 dated: 09
November 2009 contingent liabilities are disclosed as off balance sheet items.

3.5 Memorandum items
Memorandum items are maintained for those items for which the Bank has only a business responsibility and no
legal commitment.

3.6 Income

The revenues during the period are recognized on an accrual basis, which comply with the conditions of revenuc
recognition as provided in IFRS # 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

3.6.1 Income from Investments

Profit on investments are recognized against the investment of fund under Mudaraba, Musharaka, Murabaha.
Bai-Muazzal and Hire Purchase etc. in line with related approved policy of the Bank. Profit on investment ceascs
to be taken into income when such investment accounts are classified. It is then kept in compensation/rent
suspense account and the same is accounted for on cash basis as and when recovered or de-classified as per
related BRPD circular. Fees and commission income are recognized when it is earned.

3.6.2 Sharing of investment income

In case of investment, Mudaraba fund gets preference over cost free fund. The investment income carncd
through deployment of Mudaraba Fund is shared by the Bank and the Mudaraba depositors at the pre-agreed
ratio.

3.6.3 Income from Investments in Securities

* Dividend income on shares is accounted for on actual basis when it is received.

* Gain on sale of shares and securities are recognized as income on actual basis except. Bangladesh
Govt. Mudaraba Bond.

= Profit on investment of Bangladesh Govt. Islami Bond is recognized on accrual basis.

» Profit from investment in subordinated bond is accounted for on an accrual basis.

3.6.4 Fees, commission and exchange income

Fees, commission and exchange income on services provided by the Bank are recognized as and when the
related services are rendered. Commission charged to customers on letter of credit and letter of guarantee are
credited to Income at the time of effecting the transactions.

3.6.5 Other Comprehensive Income

As per IAS1: Presentation of Financial Statements, Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or components of
OCI, as a part of financial statements are to be included in a single Other Comprehensive Income statement.
But as per BRPD Circular # 15, dated: 09 November 2009, there is no statement of OCI and we follow the
template for reporting as per the Bangladesh Bank circular. If there is any component of OCI, it is shown in
statement of changes in equity.

3.7 Expenses
3.7.1 Profit paid on Deposit

As per agreement between the Mudaraba depositors and the Bank in line with Mudaraba Principle, the
Mudaraba depositors are entitled to get minimum 65% of the investment income earned through deployment of
Mudaraba Fund as per weightage assigned to each type of Mudaraba deposit. Mudaraba Depositors do not share
any income derived from various banking services where their fund is not involved and any income derived
from Investing Bank’s Equity and other Cost Free Fund.
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3.7.2 Management and other expenses
Expenses incurred by the Bank are recognized on an accrual basis.

3.7.3 Zakat

Zakat is paid by the bank at the rate of 2.58% (instead of 2.50% as the bank maintains its account following
Gregorian year) on the closing balances of statutory reserve, other reserve, exchange equalization account and
surplus retained earnings. Payment of zakat on paid up capital and deposits is the responsibility of the
shareholders and depositors respectively.

3.7.4 Dividend Payments

Final dividend is recognized when it is approved by the shareholders in Annual General Meeting (AGM). The
proposed dividend for the year 2022, therefore, has not been recognized as a liability however disclosed in the
balance sheet in accordance with TAS-10 "Events after the Reporting Period”. Dividend payable to the Bank’s
shareholders is recognized as a liability and deducted from the shareholders’ equity in the period in which the
shareholders’ right to receive the dividend 1s established.

3.8 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Earnings per share (EPS) has been computed by dividing the basic earnings by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding as per International Accounting Standard (TAS) - 33 “Earnings Per Share”. EPS tor
comparative period also restated by the bonus share if issued. Details are in note 37.

Basic Earnings
This represents earnings for the year attributable to ordinary sharcholders. Net profit after tax has been
considered as fully attributable to the ordinary shareholders.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

This represents the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of the year plus the number of
ordinary shares issued during the year. The basis of computation of number of shares is in line with the
provisions of TAS 33 “Earnings per share”. The logic behind this basis is, that the bonus shares are issued 1o the
existing shareholders without any consideration, and therefore, the number of shares outstanding 1s increased
without an increase in resources generating new earnings.

Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution during
the year under review. It is pertinent to mention that, potential ordinary shares is in convertible subordmate
bond that may entitle their holders to ordinary shares.

3.9 Reconciliation of inter-bank/inter-branch account

Books of account with regard to inter-bank (in Bangladesh and outside Bangladesh) and inter-branches are
reconciled on monthly basis and there are no material differences which may affect the financial statements

significantly.

Un-reconciled entries in case of inter-branch transactions as at the reporting date are not material

40




3.10 Segment Reporting
As per IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, is a component of an equity:

(a) that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including
revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity)

(b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performances, and

(¢) for which discrete financial information is available.
Bank reported its segments in respect of business segment and geographical segment. Business
segments are comprised of Islamic Banking, Off-shore Banking, First Security Islami Capital &
Investment Limited and First Security Tslami Exchange Italy S.R.L. Geographical segments report
consist of location wise performance of above segments.

3.11 Credit rating of the Bank

As per BRPD circular no. 6 dated 5 July 2006, the Bank has done its credit rating by Emerging Credit Raung
Limited (ECRL). ECRL assigned A+ (A plus) rating in the long term (indicates very strong capacity) and §1-2 n
the short term (Strong certainty of timely repayment) to the Bank based on the Financial Statements as on 31
December 2022.

3.12 Risk Management

Risks are the potential that an event, action or inaction will adversely impact the ability of an entity to achieve its
organizational objectives. Risk management is a process of identfying, analyzing, assessing, devising &
implementation of appropriate policies to control or mitigate the material uncertainties for the organization
effectively and efficiently.

FSIBL. has high powered ‘Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC)’ comprising of honorable vice-chairman
of the bank as chairman and two directors of the Board as member. The commuittee defines the risk appetite for
the bank, designs organizational structure to manage risk within the bank, reviews and approves risk
management policies, enforces and uses adequate recordkeeping and reporting system, and monitors compliance
of overall risk management in the bank.

FSIBL has been addressing it’s risks through a separate risk management division under the direct
supervision of the Chief Risk Officer (CRO). The Additional Managing Director (AMD) of FSIBL. has been
nominated as Chief Risk Officer (CRO) to ensure the highest priority in risk management actvities.

FSIBL has also an Executive Risk Management Committee (ERMC) at management level consisting of member
from the different core risks management divisions under the chairmanship of Chief Risk Officer (CRO) of the
Bank. The Divisional Head of Risk Management Division has been assigned as the “Deputy Chief Risk Officer
(DCRO)” of the bank and Member Secretary of the committee (ERMC).

The Risk Management Division of FSIBL is conducting its activities through the eight different desks covering
core functional areas of the bank. An overview of the operational activities is highlighted below.

3121 Investment Risk Management
Investment Risk is one of the core risks the bank faces. This can be characterized as possible losses brought on
by a counterparty's failure to perform in accordance with the terms of the bank's agreement. Faillure may come
from the counterparty's refusal, deterioration in his or her economic status, changes in the market, etc. Fvery
coin of investment carries a certain amount of risk.

Investment Risk includes financial risk, operational risk, security risk, management risk, business risk, industry
risk, relationship risk, market risk, social risk, money laundering risk, fraud & forgeries, governmental risk,
political nsk, equity risk, commodity risk, legal risk, systematic risk, technical risk, concentration risk, profit rarc
risk, liquidity risk, reputational risk, strategic risk, settlement risk, environmental and climate change risk, and so
on. In addition to those risks, Islami Banking has some specific risks like fiduciary risk, displaced commercial
risk, liquidity risk for lack of non-structural Islamic Financial Market, Sharta’h compliance risk, etc. Risk
gradation and weight changes depending on the circumstances and environment of investment.
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Better Investment Risk Management (IRM) gives the opportunity to greatly improve overall performance of the
Bank and secure a competitive advantage. The goal of Investment Risk Management is to maintain mvestmen!
risk exposure within proper and acceptable parameters. It is the practice of mitigating losses by understanding
the adequacy of a bank’s capital and investment loss reserves (provision) at any given time. An cffective
Investment Risk Management system not only manages the entire investment portfolio but also individual
investments. There are five basic steps that are taken to manage risk; these steps are referred to as the risk
management process. It begins with identifying risks, goes on to analyze risks, then the risk is prioritized,
solution is implemented, and finally, the risk is monitored and reviewed periodically.

An Investment Risk Management Committee (IRMC) has been formed by the bank for the implementation of
the Investment Risk Management Policy/strategy approved by the Board of Directors (BoD), monitoring
investment risk on the bank-wide basis and ensuring compliance with limits approved by the BoD, making
recommendations to the board, for its approval, clear policies on standards for presentation of investment
proposals, financial covenants, Internal Investment Risk Rating (IIRR) score, rating standards, segregation of
cottage micro, small & medium enterprises and benchmarks, advising the Management for deciding delegation
of investment approving powers, prudential limits on large investment exposures, standards for investment
collateral, portfolio management, investment review mechanism, risk concentrations, risk monitoring and
evaluation, pricing of investments, provisioning, regulatory/legal compliance, etc.

3.12.2 Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Since Foreign Exchange Risk involves purchase and sale of any national currency against other national
currency, thus Foreign Exchange Risk is the chance of loss due to unexpected movement of market price of the
currencies of different countries or the price of the assets denominated by foreign currencies. The Foreign
Exchange Risk of the bank is minimal as all the transactions are carried out on behalf of the customers against
underlying Foreign FExchange transactions.

Treasury Division independently conducts the transactions and the Back Office of treasury is responsible for
verification of the deals and passing of their entries in the books of account. All foreign exchange transactions
are revalued at Mark-to-Market rate as determined by based on industrial weighted average at the month end. All
Nostro accounts are reconciled on daily basis and outstanding entries beyond 30 days are reviewed by the
Management for their settlement.

3.12.3 Asset Liability Management

Asset Liability Management (ALM) is an integral part of Bank Management and it is essential to have a
structured and systematic process for managing the Balance Sheet. The Asset Liability committee (ALCO) of
our bank consists of the senior executives chaired by the Managing Director, and the head of Treasury is the
member secretary of this committee, should meet at least once every month to analyze, review and formulate
strategy to manage the balance sheet an also If needed special ALCO meeting 1s arranged. The result of balance
sheet analysis along with recommendation is placed in the ALCO meeting by the Treasury Division where
important decisions are made to minimize risk and maximize return. ALLCO mainly reviews the balance sheet ol
the bank such as liquidity requirement, the maturity of assets and liabilities, deposit and investment, pricing
strategy and the liquidity contingency plan and also monitor Net Profit Income (NPI), return on assets,
investment value and exchange earnings, Capital Adequacy Ratio, Investment Deposit Ratio, Investable Fund,
Deposit Mix, Cost of Deposit, Cost of Fund, LCR, NSFR, and leverage ratios etc. as a part of regulatory
compliance. ALCO is a decision-making unit responsible for balance sheet planning and management from risk-
return perspective, and also responsible for the strategic management of profit rate risk and liquidity risks.

3.12.4 Anti-Money Laundering & Combating Financing of Terrorism

First Security Islami Bank Ltd. (FSIBL) is always pragmatic and watchful against complying all kinds of acuvities
regarding money laundering and financing of terrorism. Every year the honorable Managing Director of the
bank declares a written clear commitment and procedures regarding Anti Money Laundering (AML) &
Combating Financing of Terrorism (CFI) for all the employees and monitors the implementation of thesce
activities.




An Additional Managing Director (AMD) as Chief Anti Money Laundering Compliance Officer (CAMLCO)
and an Executive Vice President as Deputy Chief Anti Money Laundering Compliance Officer (D-CAMLCO)]
of the bank has been duly assigned for the effective prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing
activities in the bank. A powerful "Central Compliance Committee (CCC)" chaired by the aforesaid AMD and
co-chaired by a Deputy Managing Director (DMD) consisting of senior executives and divisional heads has been
continuously supervising the overall anti-money laundering & combating financing of terrorist activities of the
bank.

According to the Bangladesh Financial Intelligence Unit (BFIU) guidelines, a full-fledged division named "Anti
Money Laundering (AML) & Combating Financing of Terrorism (CFI) Division" is headed by the D-
CAMLCO has been working in the head office of the bank under the close supervision of CAMLCO. Zonal
heads of the bank have been nominated as Zonal Anti Money Laundering Compliance Officer (ZAMLCO) 10
strengthen the AML & CFT activities in the branches of the respective zone. Under the instructions of BFIL', a
senior and experienced official or manager operation of every branch has been nominated as "Branch Ant
Money Laundering Compliance Officer (BAMLCO)" by the CCC of the bank for preventing money laundering
and terrorist financing at the branch. The manager and the BAMLCO ensure overall AML & CFT activities in
the branch along with the tagged sub-branch (es) and agent banking outlet (s).

AML & CFT risk is treated one of the core risks in bank’s risk management. The bank is always careful about
identification and mitigation of AML & CFT risks. To ensure proper compliance for AML & CFT nsk
management, bank ensures the following mitigation mechanism:

1) Issuance and regular update of board approved ML & TF Risk Assessment Guidelines for FSIBL in
line with the direction of BFIU issued ML & TF Risk Assessment Guidelines for Banks.

if) Issuance and regular update of board approved ML & TF Risk Management Guidelines for FSIBI.
in line with the direction of BFIU issued ML & TF Risk Management Guidelines for Banks.

1if) Ensuring Know your Customer (KYC), Customer Due Diligence (CDD) and Enhanced Due
Diligence (EDD) procedure for every account.

iv) Cautious & effective monitoring of customers’ transaction for submitting applicable STR/SAR 1o
Bangladesh Financial Intelligence Unit (BFIU). It may be mentionable that total 514 STR/SARs
have been submitted to BFIU throughout the year 2022.

v) Monthly reviewing CTR and CTR analysis report and submission of this report accurately as Cash
Transaction Report (CTR) in due time to BFIU.
vi) Circulation of necessary policies, circulars & guidelines from the AML & CFT Division in line with

the instructions of BFIU.

vii) Conducting on-site & off-site supervision in the branches. AML & CFT System Check Inspection
of branches by AML & CFT Division in addition to Independent Testing Procedures (ITP) audit by
Internal Control & Compliance Division.

vii)  Ensuring training/workshop on AML/CFT for every employee. Zone wise training/workshop on
AML & CFT related issues for different desk officers of the bank.
ix) The bank distributes a huge number of leaflets and hangs posters & banners on the topic of Anti-

Money Laundering and Combating Financing of Terrorism at every branch, sub-branch and agent
banking outlet for building public awareness on these issues.

X) For the prevention of Trade-Based Money Laundering (TBML), the bank implements Guidelines
for Prevention of TBML as per BFIU’s instructions.

3.12.5 Internal Control and Compliance

Background:

Safe and sound banking depends on the ample level of internal control structures along with its consistent and
meticulous enforcement inside the bank. The lack of an internal control system which duty is to keep the risks
under control or major breakdowns within an existing internal control system poses a threat against the success
of the banking sector.




Framework of Internal Control System:

Internal control broadly involves everything that controls risk in an organization. Internal control objectives are
related to the reliability of financial reporting, timely feedback on the achievement of operational or strategic
goals and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. As per Bangladesh Bank (BB) and Bank for
International Settlements (BIS), an internal control system (ICS) oversights the whole process in relation with
the policies, processes, laws, regulations, tasks, behaviors and other aspects of a banking company to facilitates
its effective and efficient operation by enabling it to respond appropriately to significant business, operational,
financial, compliance and other risks in achieving its objectives.

According to BB, the main objectives of the IC process can be categorized as-(a) operations objectives,
achievement of a bank’s basic mission and vision; (b) reporting objectives, timely, accurate, and comprehensive
reporting-financial and non-financial, internal and external; and (c) compliance objectives, conducting activitics
and taking specific actions in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. To achieve the set objectives, an
independent and strong ICCD is a must in every bank. For efficient operation of the ICCD, it is constituted into
three interrelated units-(a) audit/inspection (b) monitoring and (c) compliance.

Functions of ICCD:

The main issue of Internal Control and Compliance Division (ICCD) is to look after, whether bank machinery is
acting as vanguards of its assets, reputations and depositor’s interest. ICCD oversees whether the bank s
following regulatory guidelines, institutional policies and procedures set and approved by its Board of Directors
(BoD) and whether there is any deficiency in internal policy and procedure. The main objective of ICCD 1n bank
is to ensure the effectiveness of risk management, internal control and governance processes.

The head of the ICCD is responsible for both monitoring and compliance related tasks. He reports the activities
and findings relating to internal control and compliance (ICC) and monitoring activities of the bank to senior
management. The head of Internal Audit/inspection, although being a part of ICCD administratively, reports
directly to Audit Committee of Board (ACB).

The internal audit unit doing the on-site verification, evaluation and audit/inspection independently assess the
effectiveness and efficiency of the internal control, risk management and governance system and processes
created by the business unit. The internal auditor’s work involves identifying areas, where internal controls are
not in place or where there is a risk of failure of control. The audit team prepares and submits audit report along
with the audit rating of the branch. A summary of audit findings and corrective actions taken is forwarded 1o
ACB and the senior management simultaneously. The internal audit unit is also responsible for conducting I'X
audit and preparing a summary report, which is submitted to BB. Monitoring is off-site supervision method. 1f
deemed necessary, this unit instructs the audit unit to carry out an audit on the specific deviation. It s
responsible for conducting effective monitoring on the proper implementation of various control tools
(DCFCL, QOR, IDLC and Self-Assessment of Anti-Fraud Internal Control Checklist).

The Compliance unit of ICCD is responsible for ensuring that bank complies with all regulatory requirements
while conducting its business. The head of compliance unit is ultimately accountable for ensuring compliance
with all applicable regulations. The unit maintains liaison with the regulators and notifies the concerned units of
bank regarding regulatory changes.

Information System (IS) Audit is also carried out under ICCD aiming to detect technological risks and
recommends a practical solution to the matters. IS audit examines whether the I'T processes and IT resources
combine together satisfactorily to accomplish the intended objectives of the bank. For determining whether I'l
decisions, directions, and performance support bank’s strategies and objectives, IS auditors evaluates the
effectiveness of the I'T governance structure.

Finally the objectives of ICCD are to evaluate the effectiveness of the operations, accuracy and timeliness of the
reporting and the compliance with the applicable laws and regulations. ICCD adds value to the bank through its
independent observations on different activities performed by other units.




3.12.6 Information & Communication Technology

Banks play a pivotal role in the sustained growth of an economy. Banking sector is important to maintain
financial equilibrium and economic stability. On the other hand, Information and Communication Technology
(ICT) is increasingly becoming an invaluable and powerful tool for driving development, supporting growrth.
promoting innovation and enhancing competitiveness. It is introducing global environment which will bring all
nations around the world to come together to form a global networked community. Banks are increasingly using
sophisticated digital technology for banking activities with a view to achieve more customet’s satisfaction with
less cost. In addition, it increases the efficiency of the banking and payment system, benefiting customers and
merchants leading to bridging additional risks.

Information assets are critical to the services provided by the Bank to its customers. Protection and maintenance
of these assets are viral to its sustainability. In order to ensure protection of critical IT assets from unauthorized
access, modification, disclosure and destruction the Bank has already taken initiative, which safeguard the
interest of customers. In this context Bank has implemented a core banking software ensuring adequate security.
The bank’s core banking system has upgraded to a new version BankUltimus 4.0.0.5, and with it BankUltimus's
slowness problems are fixed. ATM Transaction dispute management, Database and Grid infrastructures version
up gradation, locker service and pay order payment service from the Remote branch, new module for CTPC for
Inland Bill Purchases were successfully integrated with BankUltimus's latest version. A total of 25 MIS reports
was successfully deployed as per the requirement of management, different division, and branches. New rules
for NBR TAX 53F deduction were successfully integrated with the BankUltimus system. A user manual for the
BankUltimus system was developed and New Module for CTPC for Inland Bill Purchases was deployed
successfully.

The Bank has a Data Center which is fault-tolerant, allowing us to upgrade, install patch, maintenance and any
activity without downtime. The establishment enables to satisfy valued clients with sharp & better service. To
protect sensitive information of core banking in the event of any disaster, the Bank has implemented 2 disaster
Recovery Site. Up gradation of the FIRE Safety Security System for both Data Center and Disaster recovery site
have been completed.

The Bank has already developed its own ICT security policy for various operation and services which are closcly
in line with the ICT security policy guideline of Bangladesh Bank. Active Directory Domain Controller (ADDC)
has implemented in all branches and head office according to the Guideline of Bangladesh Bank. SentinelOnc
has successfully deployed as an anti-malware solution to ensure Servers security. Implementation of Reddo
Servers and Integrated Mail Archiving Solution successfully done.

To ensure the information security and cyber security of the bank, ICT division has implemented Network
Access Center (NAC) solution, Network Management System (NMS) solution, Privileged Access Management
(PAM) Solution, Network Behavior Analyzer (NBA) solution, and VA/PT tools. The third phase of the
1SO27001:2013 audit, Information Security External Audit, and SWIFT CSP audit have been completed.
Implementation of updated core & secutity infrastructure at DC & DR has been done.

Data Center Network Upgradation and ICT Division and CARD Division LAN segregation have been done.
ITCL network traffic has been bought under Firewall. FSIBL with Bangladesh Bank DC and DR logical
connectivity swap for BACH & RTGS services. VPN connectivity was established with GP and ROBI for POS
transactions. VPN connectivity was established with GP, Banglalink, Robi, and Teletalk for the FirsCash
transaction. Furthermore, VPN connectivity was established with BREB DC for Postpaid Bill Collection, with
Terrapay for bKASH Bill Collection, with BRTA head office for Bill Collection, and with Gigatech for E-KYC
verification. SWIFT network segregation from branch network done to enable SWIFT environment security.

The in-house software team of ICT Division is developing various in-house software. To enhance the security
of in-house software necessary steps has been taken. ICT Division has deployed “helpdesk” service to help an
individual, group, ot organizational function. Typically, the term refers to centralized help provided to users
within an enterprise with ticketing system for specific problem identification and automation. With that keeping
track of each problem & solution can be possible.
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Apart from the helpdesk, ICT division has developed Card Forwarding Automation, AMLD CFTD, STR, and
SAR Management System, IMRD Document Management System, FAMS (Fixed Asset Management System)
Office Equipment, Agent Banking, Books, Credit Card Reporting System, Cheque Requisition System (Batch
File Generation), Dispute Management System, LC Price Verification, Yellow page Modificaton, Automated
Exchange Position, ORBIT system, SSL Payment Gateway to FSIBL, File Management System developed by its
in-house development unit. The in-house software team is also responsible for various types of reporting (o
Bangladesh Bank and other regulatory organizations. The whole team is working on in-house development so
that the Bank can reduce costs by maintaining data integrity and smooth services.

Internet banking facility has taken banking era one step ahead for future generations. Inclusion of RTGS and
EFTN in i-banking platform has increased its credibility towards modernization. FSIBL launched 1ts Internet
Banking Service on the year 2014 and currently, there are 11,523 Customers on this service as on 31st December
2022. FSIBL CLOUD is an Official Mobile Application of First Security Islami Bank Limited and as on 31st
Dec 2022 there are 69,862 users are using this service. In order to improve the service for the client FSIBL
Internet Banking and FSIBL CLOUD have been merged into the new Web and App Based Internet Banking
FSIBL CLOUDNET. FSIBL Corporate E-Banking has been implemented for Corporate Clients.

Now own bank Credit Card Bill payments can be done through Internet Banking and the client can use FSIBL
CLOUD without Mobile Data. Again RTGS Payment from Bank to Bank, Bank to the client, and Bank to
Multiple Clients through USD, EURO, and GBP have been implemented. FSIBL Mobile Banking s rebranded
its Mobile Financial Services named “FirstCash” with having strong network coverage consisting of 112
distributors, 45,339 MFS (Mobile Financial Services) agents, and 7,47,678 customers all over the country.

Training is the key component of ICT Risk Management. The Bank has been continuously conducting training
sessions on sensitive ICT tasks (i.e. Operation Procedure, Business Continuity Planning, Disaster Recovery
Planning, Certification Preparation Training, etc.) for relevant employees. FSIBL ICT Division atranges training
at regular intervals for branch personnel and in-house personnel. In the year 2022, through Licensed ZOOM
apps the bank arranged training programs: 1) HelpDesk Training for all ICT Officials, 2) Cyber Security
Awareness Program for all Officials of FSIBL, and 3) ICT POC Training for Two officials of all FSIBL
Branches. The bank has also provided physical training, as required, and when considered right. This year this
division has brought all the executives and officials under the scope of Cyber Security Awareness training.

The Bank has been maintaining adequate physical security inside its workplace to properly protect ICT resource.
The bank is strictly following the Information security standard of Bangladesh bank covering Password Control,
User ID Maintenance, Input Control, Network security, Data Encryption, Virus Protection and Access Control
of Internet and Emailing. The Bank is regularly conducting internal ICT audit to all its branches and Head
Office Divisions to ensure proper implementation of the ICT policy. The bank has established Disaster
Recovery Site and it is a complete backup of the Data Center of the bank. Customer data will be secured by the
DR site if any unwanted disaster happens in Data Center. In situations like encountering a disaster, [CT Division
can drive the Banking service through Disaster Recovery Site. FSIBL established the DR site and inaugurared 1t
on 4th June 2015 and since then the bank has started operating banking services from the DR site at the
periodical interval every year. In the year 2022, the bank operated a banking service from the RD site for 72
hours.
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3.12.7 Environmental Risk Management (ERM)

Sustainable Development has been increasingly being recognized to the growth. New standards and codes of
conduct have been developed towards ESRM within the Banking sector to promote corporate accountability on
the impacts of Business on environment and society. From the perspective of banking sector, the role of ESRM
is aimed to reduce the probability of default.

To reduce exposure to risk arising from the E&S risks of their clients. Banks need to ensure that their clients’
financial and operational sustainability is not undermined by adverse impacts on the environment and
surrounding communities. Banks need to have a clear understanding of potential E&S risks and implications for
a client’s operations prior to being linked to the client in the context of transactions.

Environmental risk is assessed by Environmental & Social Due Diligence (ESDD) Checklist which is divided
into three sections; i) General Risks, ii) Environmental health and Safety Risks, iif) Social Risks. The checklist 1s
integrated with the generic and the 10 environmentally sensitive sectors for investment. The investment
categoties for which the ESRM is applicable are agriculture finance; cottage, micro small, medium enterprises
(CMSME) finance; financing in retail and trading enterprises; consumer financing; financing in all large
manufacturing and service enterprises (other than CMSME, retail and trading enterprises) and infrastructure
finance Banks and FIs need to refer to the ESDD checklist only for carrying out the ESDD. The ESDD
checklists will auto generate the E&S risk ratings — high, medium and low based on the responses provided to
the questions in the checklist

3.13 Risk Based Capital (Basel-IIT)

To comply with the international best practice and to make the bank’s capital more risk sensitive as well as to
build the banking industry more shock absorbent and stable, Bangladesh Bank is aimed to implement Bascl-111
teporting from 2015. As per the directive of Bangladesh Bank, all schedule banks in Bangladesh are now
required to report risk Based capital adequacy for banks under Bas el-111. All scheduled banks are also required to
disclose capital adequacy in both quantitative terms as per Bangladesh Bank BRPD Circular No. 18 Dated
December 21, 2014.

3.14 Stress Testing

A bank’s Stress Testing is an analysis conducted undet hypothetical scenatios (minor shock, moderate shock and
major shock) designed to determine whether a bank has enough capital to withstand a negative economic shock,
It identifies the specific vulnerabilities/area of concern i.e. (Changes in investment exposure and rating, profir
rate changes, exchange rate fluctuations, events which influence liquidity, changes in equity price etc.).
construction of the scenario, performing the numerical analysis and summarizing and interpreting the results.
Finally, it produces a numerical estimate of the change in the value of risk exposed positions. FSIBL. prepares
Stress Testing Report on quarterly basis and submit to Bangladesh Bank as per the guideline.

3.15 Related party transactions

Patties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operational decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence related party
transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related parties, regardless of whether a
price is charged as per IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, Bangladesh Bank and Bangladesh Securities &
Exchange Commission (BSEC) guidelines. Related party transactions have been disclosed in note # 51.2.
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3.16 Regulatory and legal compliance

Among others, the Bank complied with the requirements of the following circular, rules and regulations:
a) The Bank Companies Act, 1991 as amended 2013

b) The Companies Act, 1994
¢) BRPD Circular No. 14 dated 25.06.2003 and “Guidelines for Islamic Banking” issued by Bangladesh Bank

through BRPD Circular No. 15 dated 09.11.2009

d) Other circulars, rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank from time to time
e) The Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987

f) The Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969

g) The Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993

h) Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 as amended Finance Act-2022

i) Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act, 2012 and Rule, 2016
j) Standards issued by AAOIFI

k) The Stamp Act-1899

I) The Customs Act-1969

m) The Money Laundering Prevention Act, 2012

n) The Anti Terrorism (Amendment) Act, 2009 etc.

Compliance checklist of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and International
Accounting Standards (IAS):

IFRS Title IFRS No. Compliance Status
First-time Adoption of International Financial 1 Not Applicable
Reporting Standards
Share-based Payment 2 Not Applicable
Business Combinations 3 Applied
Insurance Contracts 4 Not Applicable
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and 5 Not Applicable
Discontinued Operations
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral 6 Not Applicable
Resources
Financial Instruments: Disclosures 7 Applied
Operating Segments 8 Applied
Financial Instruments 9 Applied
Consolidated Financial Statements 10 Applied
Joint Arrangements 11 Not Applicable
Disclosure of Interests in other Entities 12 Applied
Fair Value Measurement 13 Applied
Regulatory Deferral Accounts 14 Not Applicable
Revenue from Contracts with Customers 15 Applied
Leases 16 Applied
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Agriculture

IAS Title IAS No. Compliance Status
Presentation of Financial Statements 1 Applied
Inventories 2 Not Applicable i
Statement of Cash Flows 7 Applied __!
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 8 Applied :
Estimates and Errors
Events After the Reporting Period 10 Applied |
Income Taxes 12 Applied ]
Property, Plant and Equipment 16 Applied
Employee Benefits 19 Applied
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure 20 Not Applicable
of Government Assistance
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 21 Applied
Borrowing Costs 23 Not Applicable N
Related Party Disclosures 24 Applied
Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit 26 Not Applicable
Plans
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 27 Applied
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 28 Not Applicable B
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics 28 Applied
Financial Instruments: Presentation 32 Applied
Earnings Per Share 33 Applied
Interim Financial Reporting 34 Applied
Impairment of Assets 36 Applied
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 37 Applied
Assets
Intangible Assets 38 Applied
Investment Property 40 Not Applicable
41 Not Applicable

3.17 Impact of COVID 19

Following the declaration of COVID 19 as a pandemic by the World Health Organization (WHO) i early
March 2020, like many other governments, the Governments of Bangladesh introduced restrictive measures
including nationwide holidays to contain further spread of the virus, affecting free movement of people and
goods. Considering the long-term impact of COVID 19 on most sectors in economy of Bangladesh, Bangladesh
Bank (BB) has issued various circular not to downgrade the clients Investment classification status.. In addition,
BB has issued circulars to provide stimulus package for some sectors through commercial bank. Both facilitate
to boost the economy and banking operations during this pandemic. The Management has also assessed 1he
overall impact on COVID 19 and has not identified any indications that may cast doubt on going concern of the
group and the bank. Bank’s primary business has not impacted expressively as it has a significant growth even
the pandemic declared by WHO except trade business. Moreover, The Management continue to monitor the

spread of the virus and its impact.




3.18 Audited Financial Statements of the Investment Client (Loanee)

Bank collects latest audited Financial Statements of the Investment Client as available and preserve the same in
the particular Investment Account in line with the instruction of Bangladesh Bank BRPD Circular letter no. 04
dated: 04 January 2021. Moreover, the bank has already signed a MOU with The Institute of Charrered
Accounts of Bangladesh and obtain necessary access to the Document Verification System (DVS) for checking
information the Financial Statements through the DVS. In order to comply with the requirements of BRPD
Circular letter no. 35 dated: 06 July 2021 bank has verified DVC mentioned in audited Financial Statements with
Document Verification System almost 100% cases from the date of having access in the DVS System.

3.19 General

(1) Wherever considered necessary, previous year’s phrases and figures have been rearranged 1o
confirm to current year/periods presentation.
(i1) All amounts in these financial statements have been recorded off to the nearest Taka.
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4.1

4.1(a)

4.2

4.2(a)

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.3

4.4

CASH

Consolidated Cash in Hand

First Sccurity Islami Bank Limited (Note-4.1( a)
First Sccurity Islami Capital & Investment Limited
First Sccurity Islami Exchange Italy

Cash in Hand

In Local Currency

In Foreign Currencies
ATM Balance

Consolidated Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its Agent Bank
First Security Islami Bank Limited (Note-4.2 (a))
First Security Islami Capital & Investment | Amired

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its Agent Bank
Balance with Bangladesh Bank (Note-4.2.1)
Balance with Sonali Bank Led. (Note-4.2.2)

Balance with Bangladesh Bank (Including Foreign Currencies)

In Local Currency

In Foreign Currencies

Balance with Sonali Bank Ltd. (as Agent of Bangladesh Bank)

In Local Currency

Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) and Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR)

31.12.2022 31.12.2021
BDT BDT
3,